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Recommendation(s)
That Council:

1. Endorses the Annual Report 2022-23.

2. Notes that the Annual Report 2022-23 fairly represents Council’s operations, financial
position and Council’s performance for the 2022-23 financial year.

3. Notes that the Annual Report 2022-23 meets the requirements of the Local Government Act
2020.

Attachments
1. FINAL DRAFT CSC Annual Report 2022-23 [6.2.1.1 - 158 pages]

Executive Summary

Council has prepared an Annual Report for the financial year 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 to meet
its obligations under Section 98 of the Local/ Government Act 2020.

The Annual Report 2022-23 is the second progress report against our Council Plan 2021-25. It
comprises three sections: Report of operations; Performance statement; and Financial statements.

On 18 September 2023, Council approved in principle the Financial and Performance statements.
These statements were also considered by Council’s Audit and Risk Committee at a meeting on 25
August 2023.

As required by the Act, Council must hold an open meeting to consider the report by
31 October.

Background

Under Section 98 of the Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) and Local Government
Planning and Reporting Regulations 2020, councils are required to prepare an Annual
Report in respect of each financial year consisting of three parts:

e Report of operations: Information about the operations of the Council including service
performance indicator results, achievement of major initiatives and a governance and
management checkilist.

e Performance statement: Audited results achieved against the prescribed performance
indicators and measures.

e Financial statements: Audited financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Australian Accounting Standards.
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e On 18 September 2023, Council approved in principle the Financial and Performance
statements for the year ended 30 June 2023 (s99). These statements were also considered
by Council’s Audit Committee at a meeting on 25 August 2023.

e Section 100 of the Actalso requires Council to hold an open meeting to consider the report
by 31 October.

Policy Implications
Nil.

Relevance to Council Plan
5.1 We practise responsible leadership

5.1.1 Build trust through meaningful community engagement and transparent decision-making.
5.1.2 Manage our finances responsibly and leave a positive legacy for future generations.

Climate Emergency Consideration
Nil.
Consultation/Communication

Senior management has contributed to the details contained in the report of operations and
highlighting Council’s major achievements for the financial year.

Public notification that the Annual report is available for inspection at the Shire offices and online
has been given.

Financial and Resource Implications

The Annual Report provides the opportunity for Cardinia Shire to communicate to the community its
achievements and challenges of the past financial year. The structure of the Annual Report is aligned
to the Council Plan 2021-25.

All legislative requirements have been met, with the financial statements prepared as required by
the Act, the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020, Australian Accounting
Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

The financial position of Council remains sound, with the financial statements considered by the
Audit Committee on 25 August 2023 and Council on 18 September 2023. The Victorian Auditor
General’s Office undertook an independent audit of the financial and performance statements for
the financial year 2022-23.

The Annual Report 2022-23 presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Council
as at 30 June 2023 and its financial performance, cashflows and operations for the financial year
2022-23.

The preparation of Council’s Annual Report 2022-23 meets all requirements of the Act.

Conclusion

The Shire of Cardinia's Annual Report for the 2022-23 financial year is presented to Council.
Council’s financial position remains sound, with the Victorian Auditor General’s Office providing an
unmodified audit opinion on the financial and performance statements. The Annual Report fairly

represents Council’s operations, financial position and Council’s performance for the 2022-23
financial year.

Preparation of Council’s Annual Report 2022-23 meets all requirements of the Act.
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Our inclusive statement

Cardinia Shire Council encourages a sense of belonging
within our shire. We support an inclusive community
comprised of people from diverse backgrounds, including
and not limited to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
people, people from cultural and linguistically diverse
(CALD) backgrounds, those identifying as LGBTIQ+, people
of faith, and people of all ages, genders and abilities.

Cardinia Shire Council

Annual Report 2022-23
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Prepared by:
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Acknowledgment

Council wishes to acknowledge all who contributed
to this annual report.
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ABN: 32 210 906 807

20 Siding Avenue, Officer
PO Box 7, Pakenham Vic 3810
(DX 81006)

Phone: 1300 787 624
Email: mail@cardinia.vic.gov.au
Web: www.cardinia.vic.gov.au

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023

10



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023

Report of operations

Our performance

Planning and accountability framework 60
Introduction Our Council Plan 61
Acknowledgment of Country 4 Strong communities 61
Welcome to our Report of Operations 6 Liveable places 61
Council snapshot 6 Thriving environments 62
Fast facts 8 Prosperous economies 62
Your rates at work 9 Responsible leaders 62
Highlights of the year 10
Challenges and future outlook 15
Year in review Performance statement
Mayor’s message 18 Description of municipality
CEQ’s report 20 Sustainable capacity indicators
Financial summary 22 Service performance indicators
Description of operations 24 Financial performance indicators
Certification of performance statement
Our Council Independent auditor’s report
Cardinia Shire profile 30
Council Wards 33
Councillors 34
Council offices 34 Financial statements
Comprehensive income statement
Our people Balance sheet
Organisation structure 36 Statement of changes in equity
Senior Leadership Team 37 Statement of cash flows
Council employees 39 Statement of capital works
Equal employment opportunity statement 42 Certification of financial statements
Independent auditor’s report
Governa nce, management Notes to financial statements
and other information
Governance 44
Management 46
Governance and management checklist 49
Certification of governance and management 52
Statutory information 53
Development contribution plans (DCPs) 56

ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

Cardinia Shire Council

Annual Report 2022-23

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023 11



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023 ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

Acknowledgement of Country

Cardinia Shire Council acknowledges the Bunurong
and Wurundjeri people as the traditional custodians
of the lands of Cardinia Shire. Council pays its
respects to elders past and present, recognising
their role in continuing traditions, knowledge,
language and culture for over 65,000 years.

Cardinia Shire’s name is derived from the Kulin
word ‘Kar-din-yarr’, meaning ‘look to the rising sun’
or ‘sunrise’. Council’s logo, which includes a motif of
the rising sun, reflects this meaning.

Council continually works to strengthen

relationships and progress reconciliation through
the delivery of actions developed in partnership with
our Traditional Owners and First Nations community.

Cardinia Shire Council
Annual Report 2022-23
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Welcome to our Report
of Operations 2022-23

Section 1 uﬁ;'odgc-tion

Cardinia Shire Council is committed to
transparent reporting and accountability.

The Report of Operations component of our Annual
Report 2022-23 highlights our key achievements
and informs our community of our operations and
performance throughout the financial year.

We're proud to present our complete Annual Report
2022 -23 to our community as a record of our
operating and financial activities over the past year.

Council snapshot

What we do

Cardinia Shire Council provides a range of community
services, programs and activities, as well as infrastructure
renewal and development to promote, develop and
improve the wellbeing and prosperity of our growing
community. We work with all members of the
community - from newborn babies and families,

to seniors and culturally diverse residents - and
across business, industry, and non-profit organisations.

We are committed to building a strong and sustainable
shire for present and future generations to enjoy. We work
with the community and continue to balance the demands
of meeting our financial responsibilities and addressing
challenges, such as managing growth while maintaining
our diverse and rural communities.

Council delivers a broad range of activities and initiatives,
each of which contributes to achieving Council’s vision

as set out in our Council Plan. The plan identifies 5
strategic objective areas: strong communities, liveable
places, thriving environments, prosperous economies and
responsible leaders. The outcomes for 2022-23 in each
of these areas is reported in the ‘Our performance’ section
of this annual report on page 59.

Cardinia Shire Council

Annual Report 2022-23

Council Plan key challenges

Council has identified the following major challenges for
the coming years:

¢ Covid-19 pandemic social and economic recovery.

¢ Tackling climate change and its impact on our
environment, economy, and people.

* Meeting the changing needs and expectations of a
growing and diverse community.

* Addressing the safety, health and wellbeing challenges
facing our community.

* Developing a prosperous local economy that is the right
fit for Cardinia Shire.

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023
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Our vision Council plan key objectives
Council’s vision to 2025 is that the unique identity of Council has 5 key strategic objectives.
our urban, hills and rural areas is strengthened, and

we will meet the challenges we face together as a Strong We empower our communities
community. How we respond will balance the needs of communities to be healthy, connected and

our people, businesses, our productive land and natural resilient
environments. &g

Our commitment
Liveable We support the creation of

Council will provide leadership, including community places liveable spaces and places

engagement with stakeholders, to ensure the long-term ) \’,
sustainability of our communities and townships. We will ~ <
be mindful of the social, environmental and economic

impacts of our decisions and ensure future generations
benefit from our decisions. We will practise good
governance and meet recognised standards of excellence.
Council will work diligently to achieve excellence in every

aspect of our activities. ﬁ
=

Feedback

Thriving We value our natural assets
environments and support our biodiversity to
thrive

Prosperous We support our productive land
economies and employment land to grow
g, local industries

Council offers this annual report to the community as an
open record of our activities and achievements in 2022-
23. We welcome feedback to support us in effectively A
reporting to our community in future years. To provide 9
feedback, please contact our customer support team on =

1300 787 624 or mail@cardinia.vic.gov.au
Responsible We practise responsible

leaders leadership

ale,
N

o7

Cardinia Shire Council
Annual Report 2022-23

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023 15



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023

8

Fast facts 2022-23

Birth notices

1,818

Bridges and major
culverts maintained

255

Building permits issued

1,417

Council kindergarten
enrolments processed

Footpaths maintained (km)

859

Garbage collected (tonnes)

22,824

Immunisations administered

Library items borrowed

455,618

Maternal and child health
consultations

15,745

Increase in number of
rateable properties
(percentage based on previous year)

2.48%

Cardinia Shire Council

Annual Report 2022-23
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Section 1 Introduction

Current animal registrations

Parks and reserves
maintained (ha)

1,575

Planning applications lodged

704

Public toilets managed

56

Recycling collected (tonnes)

Sealed roads maintained (km)

800

Unsealed roads maintained (km)

832

Underground drains
maintained (km)

970

Waste diverted from landfill

48.2%

Youth contacts with Council

Playgrounds maintained

274

16
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Your rates at work Section 1 Introduction

Dollar amounts below represent the breakdown of every $100 of rates used by
Council to deliver facilities, programs and services in 2022-23.

Bridges | $0.25

Car parks | $0.15
Children’s services - $3.46
Community

Community support I $0.71
Drainage I $1.43
Economic and

community development $1.82
Emergency and

environmental $2.59
management

Garbage and

Library services $3.48

Local law enforcement
and health services

$3.71

Maternal and

child health $2.95

Parks and gardens

$8.35

Planning services

$5.86

Roads and footpaths

$24.59

Swimming and
recreation $9.70

Youth services $1.78

Cardinia Shire Council

Annual Report 2022-23
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Highlights of the year Section 1 Introduction

Strategic objective:
Strong communities

We empower our communities to be healthy, connected and resilient.

Achievements:

* We collaborated with local community agencies ¢ Financial literacy was under the spotlight thanks to
and government authorities through the Liveability Council’s Together We Can initiative, which works to
Partnership Steering Group who oversee Cardinia decrease family violence. A partnership with Star News
Shire’s Liveability Plan 2017-29. Five Action Teams Group delivered key prevention messaging in more
have formed and are working collectively to enhance than 20 publications, including a focus on financial
the health and wellbeing of Cardinia Shire residents via capability.

their Action Agendas.

¢ Extensive advocacy and outreach helped to identify,
broaden and establish improved mental health
services. Cardinia Shire Council worked with a local
housing and family violence agency, a family support
agency, local members and the Minister for Regional
Development to address community resources.
Well-established initiatives now include Berry Street,
South East Community Links, CVGT Employment’s
YConnect program and the Youth Support +
Advocacy Service.

o
,‘-.#

* We celebrated our diverse community along with its
rich arts and culture by staging weekly and monthly
events at Cardinia Cultural Centre, in addition to art
exhibitions and school holiday shows. The Hills Hub
equally flourished, showcasing regular exhibitions, artist
activations, and networking events.

* Council worked with key stakeholders to support
multicultural residents in the community, advocating
for the construction of a multicultural centre, as well as
working to support multicultural agencies in the shire.

¢ A focus on crime prevention saw more than 10
community pop-ups created to provide residents with
an avenue for direct feedback to Victoria Police. A
successful joint grant application with Victoria Police
also resulted in 2 mobile CCTV cameras deployed in key
crime areas as a prevention tool.

Cardinia Shire Council
Annual Report 2022-23
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Strategic objective:
Liveable places

We support the creation of liveable spaces and places.

Achievements:

* We progressed the Community Infrastructure Plan and
completed our analysis. The final plan will undergo further
refinements ahead of its presentation to the public in late
2023. Following this, the plan will be presented to Council
for adoption in February 2024.

¢ Council completed several sporting facility projects,
including those at the Toomuc Recreation Reserve
pavilions, the Gembrook Recreation Reserve pavilion, the
IYU Recreation Reserve Regional Athletics Facility running
track, Cockatoo Tennis Club southern courts, the Bunyip
Recreation Reserve soccer field and Nar Nar Goon oval.

* We completed new playgrounds in consultation with
the community, including those at Creekwood Reserve,
Parman Avenue Reserve and The Parkway.

* We engaged in advocacy with both the Victorian and
Australian Governments to secure increased investment
across all transportation modes and public transportation
services. Cardinia Shire Council provided feedback to
Infrastructure Victoria, contributing valuable insights
towards the necessary reforms of state bus services.

« Additionally, we coordinated meetings with Victorian
Ministers to gather support for reinstating federal funding
towards the Sealing the Hills roads program and further
advocacy continues alongside Yarra Ranges Council. A
community petition secured nearly 3,000 signatures and
lodged with Parliament for consideration.

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023
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Council finalised the Active Cardinia Strategy after
conducting extensive engagement. The strategy focuses
on inclusiveness to encourage ‘Participation’, such as
women and girls in sport. Developing the ideal ‘Places’
and infrastructure to be active is the second component of
Active Cardinia, as well as ‘Promotion’ and ‘Partnerships’
with schools, sporting clubs and community organisations.

Shared pathways and walking tracks across Cardinia
Shire were developed and upgraded including the Eastern
Dandenong Ranges Trail, which received Growing Suburbs
Funding.

We worked with the Victorian Government and further
stakeholders to encourage sustainable supply of social
and affordable housing, tapping into the Victorian
Government’s Big Housing Build program. Council
conducted a review of the Social and Affordable Housing
Strategy’s Action Plan 2018-25, assessing 8 of 22 actions
are now complete while the remaining 14 are on track.

We delivered infrastructure upgrades to our road network
to meet the needs of the current and future population of
Cardinia Shire, and secured $41 million to ensure work
can continue for the next 2 years as part of the Sealing
the Hills roads program. Road construction on L L and
Armytage Roads in Officer, McGregor Road, Solider Road
and Hobsons Road in Rythdale are now finished as part of
the Strategic Roads program.

Cardinia Shire Council
Annual Report 2022-23
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Strategic objective:
Thriving environments

We value our natural assets and support our biodiversity to thrive.

Achievements:

e QOur Aspirational Energy Strategy saw several initiatives
implemented including 10kW solar systems installed
at Bunyip Hall and Koo Wee Rup Community Complex,
a 30kW solar system installed on the Hills Hub and the
purchase of 3 energy audit kits with other councils.

¢ Council developed a new, 5-year action plan for 2022-
2026 that aligns with the remaining 5 years of the
current Waste and Resource Recovery Strategy 2017-
2026. Highlights include the engagement of a Litter
Prevention Officer and an increase in education and
services to support fire risk mitigation within Cardinia
Shire.

* We commenced proceedings to incorporate our
approved Environmentally Sustainable Design Policy
into the Cardinia Planning Scheme via the Victorian
Government’s Minister for Planning. The Department
of Transport and Planning is currently considering

ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

e Council advocated for best-practise integrated water

management, working with City of Casey to commence
development of the Water Sensitive Urban Design
Guidelines. Additionally, a new water monitoring
system was installed at Cardinia Life, and we continue
to partner with Melbourne Water and City of Casey to
investigate the feasibility of groundwater storage and
recharge opportunities.

Tools to assist in the management of natural threats
and emergencies were provided to the community
through the Ready Get Go Bag Program, the Launch
Bushfire Prepare Program, the Get Ready Get Techy
Program and community information engagement
sessions. These initiatives are vital to build
preparedness for natural threats.

Council’s request and we anticipate finalising this within
the 2023-2024 financial year.

* A priority during the year was progressing actions within
the Biodiversity Conversation Strategy including delivery

of the Cardinia Creek Deer Partnership Program.
Cardinia Shire Council also coordinated the Peri-urban
Weed Management Partnerships Program, delivering
on-ground works with the help of multiple project
partners.

Cardinia Shire Council
Annual Report 2022-23
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Strategic objective:
Prosperous economies

We support our productive land and employment land to grow local industries.

Achievements:

¢ In the spirit of collaboration, we joined forces with other

Councils located within the Southern Green Wedge
area to advocate the development of Green Wedge
Management plans to the State Government. Forming
the Southern Ranges Green Wedge Management Plan
Inter-Council Working Group, we will continue to lobby
for more resources and financial assistance as we
move into the new financial year.

¢ Nutrition and food security remained a priority, and the
Community Food Strategy & Action Plan 2018-26 saw
several action points implemented. Of the 66 actions in
total, 30 are now complete, including Council securing
funding towards a ‘Future Proofing Farming project’
to increase education and employment pathways for
young people into the agricultural sector.

* Support for a South East Melbourne Airport progressed
as Cardinia Shire Council worked in partnership with
the Greater South East Melbourne regional group to
actively advocate this regional priority. The group has
prepared reports to identify the best next steps and
future direction in establishing the airport.

¢ We incorporated a new Investment Attraction Plan
into the Economic Development Strategy, which
Council adopted to provide clear direction on how
we will respond and thrive in the current economic
environment. We continue to work with Invest Victoria
to prioritise Cardinia Shire as a destination for new and
existing businesses.

¢ We supported and facilitated investment opportunities
within Cardinia Shire’s townships and employment
precincts. Highlights included undertaking the Hills
Economic Impact Assessment to review planning
controls and explore opportunities within Ranges Ward,
while the Outdoor Dining & Activation program saw the

proliferation of alfresco dining spaces.

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023

* With the help of the Victorian Government, Council

developed local education opportunities; Kurrun
Primary School and the Kurmboon Integrated Child and
Family Centre both later opened as a result. Council
also progressed discussions with developers and local
universities regarding the establishment of a Centre

of Excellence, focused on the educational and training
needs of local employers.

Our visitor potential grew through the establishment of
the Cardinia Tourism Advisory committee, in addition
to the promotion and marketing of local tourism and
hospitality businesses through the What’s On Cardinia
website.

Cardinia Shire Council
Annual Report 2022-23
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Strategic objective:
Responsible leaders

We practise responsible leadership.

Achievements:

e Council took pride in involving the community in
significant projects, consistent with its Community
Engagement Policy and in line with the Local
Government Act. Projects included the Community
Safety Policy, Active Cardinia Strategy, the Emerald
Lake Park Masterplan and the Pakenham Beaconsfield
BMX Track. We introduced QR codes and face-to-face
pop-up initiatives to encourage and increase community
participation.

* During the 2022-23 period, Cardinia Shire Council
developed a comprehensive financial plan to ensure
financial sustainability. The 10-year Long Term
Financial Plan, Capital Works Program and Budget
involved discussions across Cardinia Shire Council and
engagement with the community.

* We worked with strategic partners to progress joint
advocacy initiatives throughout the year. The Cardinia
Shire Advocacy Plan contains clear direction on priority
initiatives, stakeholders and projects, such as the South
East Airport, Sealing the Hills, financial wellbeing for
residents and Cardinia Life infrastructure.

* To identify new sources of income, we initiated the
Alternative Revenue Stream Project. The plan will guide
long-term financial planning and takes the current
evolving financial climate into consideration to create
realistic opportunities that align with Council objectives.

e Council demonstrated transparent decision making
through quarterly reports made available to Cardinia
Shire citizens throughout the year.

Cardinia Shire Council
Annual Report 2022-23
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Challenges and future

outlook

Challenges

* Cardinia Shire is one of the state’s most prosperous
and fast-growing municipalities, with demand on our
community infrastructure and services continuing to
grow along with our population. This places greater
importance on planning and sustainability. We're
committed to responding effectively to population
growth while continuing to meet community
expectations and needs, as well as attracting further
services to the shire - this is our vision.

¢ One of the key ongoing challenges for Council is
managing the natural and built environments of the
shire, including balancing our conservation efforts and
preservation of the natural environment with the need
for further development to meet the needs of our
ever-growing community.

e Our culturally diverse communities face a large number
of challenges when settling in Cardinia Shire, including
language and communication barriers as well as a lack
of access to key services and infrastructure. In addition,
attracting culturally specific services and programs to
the shire that are close to transport and retail hubs is
challenging but continues to be important.

* A main focus for Council continues to be attracting
services for our Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
communities, as we recognise that these services are
best placed to support our Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander residents as they are likely to be more effective
in designing and delivering culturally appropriate
community services, and in gathering interest and
uptake.

* While many of the obstacles facing our municipality
resemble those of other Victorian councils, Cardinia
Shire is one of the state’s fastest growing and most
prosperous municipalities, so our needs are unique.
Demand for functional infrastructure and effective
critical services grows along with our population.

Providing these services and assets in a timely manner

is paramount.

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023
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The COVID-19 pandemic may be considered behind
us, but it has left a lasting impact on how we live,
work, access important services and connect socially.
The resulting social and economic impacts are
significant, in particular the impact on mental health.
We are committed to learning from the pandemic

and understanding the longer-term impacts on our
community.

Tackling climate change and its impact on our
environment, economy and citizens is one of the
greatest challenges of our time. Australians are
already seeing more warm spells, frequent and intense
downpours, and longer fire seasons. Climate change
impacts our biodiversity, water supplies, energy
demand, and our health — particularly that of our more
vulnerable community members.

When it comes to supporting local industry
development and creating local jobs, we need a

clear direction for leveraging our productive land and
employment land to grow local industries, increase
jobs in the area, and keep our skilled workforce. These
actions will contribute to improving Cardinia Shire’s
attractiveness as an employment hub.

Several health, safety and wellbeing risks face our
community. Cardinia Shire is reporting high rates of
family violence incidents, with 4 incidents reported
across the municipality each day. We have higher than
average rates of poor mental wellbeing, higher rates of
food insecurity and a lower intake of nutritious food.
Working collectively across government, with local
service providers and community leaders, we

will continue to prioritise addressing the social
determinants and risk factors of poor health and
wellbeing.

Cardinia Shire Council
Annual Report 2022-23
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The future

¢ Council is committed to working towards providing
equitable access to important services and facilities.
This includes attracting new services to Cardinia
Shire to help fill critical gaps, in addition to exploring
innovative service models.

* Maintaining an open line of communication with
residents is a priority for Council. Community
engagement, particularly during decision-making
processes, is paramount in increasing connectivity.
We will utilise our online engagement platform,
meetings, workshops and activities, websites, social
media platforms, community newsletters and surveys
to consult with our community and seek feedback on
important matters.

* We are looking forward to putting the pandemic in the
past with new learnings pushing us ahead. Council
anticipates the cost of living will be another key
consideration next financial year. We endeavour to
identify creative solutions to help businesses flourish,
manage our financial resources, and continue to
support individuals as they get back on their feet.

Cardinia Shire Council
Annual Report 2022-23
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¢ As outlined in our Sustainable Environment

Policy 2018-28, we recognise that every action

our community and Council takes influences our
environment; we want to make that influence as
positive as possible. How we adapt and mitigate climate
change impacts will require a holistic approach, from
how we drive sustainable development to how we grow
our local industries.

Through our Liveability Plan 2017-29, Council aims

to keep our people healthy and thriving, preventing
disease, iliness, injury, disability or premature death
where possible. We will build our community’s capacity
to do so, use evidence-based decision-making,

and focus on Cardinia Shire’s liveability to create
environments that enhance our community’s wellbeing.

Council will continue to action key points within the
Social and Affordable Housing Strategy 2018-25 and
encourage diversity of housing across Cardinia Shire by
working with developers and delivering social housing
projects with registered housing providers and relevant
stakeholders.

24
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Year in review

Cardinia Shire Council
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Mayor’s message

On behalf of my fellow Councillors, |
am delighted to present Cardinia Shire
Council’s Annual Report 2022-23.

As the Council’s fourth female Mayor, it has truly been an
honour to see our spirited and highly engaged community
thrive over the past 12 months.

Having been elected in November 2022, | am proud to
lead our Council, which began its term in October 2020.
We have made significant strides in recovering from the
challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, and as we
move into the year 2023-24, our focus remains steadfast
on addressing evolving community needs and advocating
for meaningful improvements.

| feel incredibly privileged to be a part of this municipality,
an inclusive and diverse community filled with passionate
and caring people. | was fortunate enough to be reminded
of this throughout the entire year.

Cardinia Shire Council

Annual Report 2022-23
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Section 2 Year in review

Celebrating our people

It was an honour to recognise so many outstanding
Cardinia Shire residents playing a unique role in our
community through our 2023 Australia Day Awards

and nominations. Citizen of the Year winner, Shelley
Beardshaw, had generously dedicated her time to local
schools and organisations, while Senior Citizen of the Year,
Audrey Dodson, had been an integral figure in ensuring the
preservation of our history and heritage.

Community Event of the Year, the Cardinia Men’s Shed
Senior-tivity Day, was celebrated for encouraging older
men in the community to stay active and connected to
others.

Young Citizen of the Year, Ace Simpson-Braden, earned the
award for being an inspirational and selfless cadet at the
Australian Air Force 403 Squadron Beaconsfield; he has
taught new cadets essential skills, while also contributing
to various initiatives such as mental health support.

Ensuring Cardinia Shire remains a fantastic place to live,
work and play, these award winners each provide daily
inspiration to us all.

Our volunteers are equally valued. The 2023 Stan
Henwood Award recognised Jeff Latter this year for his
long-term contributions to Cardinia Shire. A courteous,
committed and accomplished leader of various community
groups, Jeff has served as a key contributor to many
environmental, conservation and land-care initiatives.

| was also proud to recognise the Bunurong and
Wurundjeri people during Reconciliation Week's flag
raising ceremonies. The events brought together so many
of us as we strived to strengthen bonds with Indigenous
and non-Indigenous residents of the community.

Finally, | must mention the citizenship ceremonies | have
been fortunate to participate in.

Meeting new faces who are so pleased to call Cardinia
Shire their home was a constant reminder of how
remarkable our community is.
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Connecting with our youth

On a personal note, | found significant purpose in

my interactions with Cardinia Shire’s young people.
Through collaboration with the Cardinia Shire Council’s
Youth Services team and experiencing their wonderful
community initiatives, as well as conducting school

visits of my own, | have grown extremely fond of such a
promising, talented and brilliant sector of our community.

| would like to acknowledge the work of the inspiring
Cardinia Shire Council Youth Services team. Some of the
initiatives we have admired are January’s Skate and Scoot
Event at Koo Wee Rup; the Cardinia Pride group which
advocates for young people in the LGBTIQA+ community;
after-school programs including Hang Out, which caters
for teenagers; Chill & Upskill’s social opportunities to learn
new life skills; the DRUMBEAT program at Officer Specialist
School, which focuses on exploring healthy relationships;
and the annual Good Choice Awards, celebrating
resilience, kindness and strength in young people.

Advocating for our community

Cardinia Shire Council increased its focus on working
with Victorian and Australian governments in 2022-23
to progress important projects. Extensive community
consultations during 2020 and 2021 guided advocacy
priorities for the 2022-23 financial year.

Our team met with Victorian Government Ministers about
various key issues, including the upgrade of 11 roads
and to reinstate funding of the shire’s ‘Sealing the Hills’
program, while a community petition of nearly 3,000
signatures was lodged with parliament.

In conjunction with Yarra Ranges Council Mayor Jim Child,
our representatives travelled to Canberra to meet with the
federal government about a commitment to fund $300
million for unsealed roads projects. The meeting took
place in late 2022 with the office of The Hon. Catherine
King, Minister for Infrastructure, Transport, Regional
Development and Local Government.

During that meeting, we also took the opportunity to talk
about the challenges for food relief and the lack of funding
in the shire.

We will continue this advocacy work over the next year to
successfully secure additional support and vital funding

across mental health services, better access to jobs and
better protection for our environment, to name a few.

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023
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Providing community support

We are very pleased to have delivered successful
community projects and infrastructure development over
the past 12 months.

The bridge over Gum Scrub Creek is a standout as
residents had been calling for the structure for some
time. The team at Cardinia Shire Council was very excited
to deliver this asset to the community, as well as the
upgraded Beaconsfield Tennis Courts and upgraded
facilities at the Toomuc Recreation Reserve. The refreshed
Creekwood Park playground in Pakenham as part of
Cardinia Shire’s 2023 Playground Renewals project was
another highlight.

Work continues on the removal of the level crossing on
Main Street in Pakenham, with the project to be fast-
tracked in the coming months. Its three boom gates are
set to be eliminated entirely by 2024 - 12 months earlier
than originally planned.

Finally, I'd like to thank each resident and business within
the Cardinia Shire for their openness and contribution

to the broader community. | am extremely proud to have
served as your Mayor in 2022-23. | am looking towards

a bright future working alongside my fellow Councillors to
better connect our community and improve the life of all
citizens.

Cr Tammy Radford

Cardinia Shire Mayor 2022-23

Cardinia Shire Council
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CEO’s report

| am proud to present this Annual Report
along with the Mayor for the 2022-23
year.

We have worked hard to deliver essential services, support
our residents, progress significant plans and complete
projects to help meet the needs of our growing Cardinia
Shire community.

We have continued to work with Councillors and
community to deliver on our commitments made in four
key strategic documents: our Council Plan 2021-25
incorporating the Community Vision 2040; Council Budget
2022-26; Financial Plan 2021-31; and the Revenue and
Rating Plan 2021-25.

Cardinia Shire Council
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Section 2 Year in review

Addressing local issues

We have continued to support and advocate for our
community members while maintaining a high level of
commitment to our services.

We saw almost 100 residents attend our annual White
Ribbon fundraiser, a key event on our calendar that raises
vital awareness and funds for family violence prevention
programs. The event effectively showcased Cardinia
Shire’s essential community services and was well
received by the community.

Council sought community input into the proposed
redevelopment of Cardinia Life, our indoor leisure and
aquatic facility. We were delighted to receive such great
ideas and are looking forward to progressing plans that
will see improvements right across the stadium, aquatics
and health and fitness areas within Cardinia Life. We
continue to advocate for government grants to fund this
project.

Several Council Plan initiatives have been completed such
as the Open Space Strategy and Active Cardinia Strategy,
both critically important for the future planning of spaces
across Cardinia Shire.

Additionally, we were pleased to complete a new Climate
Change Adaption Strategy during the year, which aims to
reduce the effects of extreme climate events on our most
vulnerable residents over the next decade.

Access and inclusion

Fundamental priorities for Council this past year have
included the upgrade and improvement of accessible
services and facilities throughout our community, as well
as the staging of events that speak directly to people with
disability and boosting the spirit of inclusion wherever
possible.

We are proud to have partnered with multiple
organisations and neighbouring councils to deliver on
these priorities and help residents further connect with
one another when they may have struggled to in previous
years.

In the past financial year, we highlighted Southern
Region Disability Inclusion Week and International Day of
People with a Disability, while making significant strides
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in community inclusion through six capital upgrades,
accessible materials, social media guidelines, carer
events, and transport advocacy.

Council was also pleased to see the completion of
upgrade works on a new accessible carpark in Garfield.
The construction reduces barriers and offers increased
participation for people with disability.

Major projects and roads

Despite an early setback when the Australian Government
withdrew significant funding towards Cardinia Shire’s
Sealing the Hills roads program, we continued to prioritise
improving our road network with Council’s own funded
road-sealing program and ongoing advocacy seeking
future funding.

While the construction industry continued to suffer

from material supply and logistics impacts along with
unpredictable global market conditions, Cardinia Shire
Council managed to deliver several important facilities and
projects this past year.

Completed works included:
* three sporting pavilions at Toomuc Reserve;
* Gembrook cricket and football pavilion;

¢ the athletics track at IYU Recreation Reserve in
Pakenham (which will reopen to the community once
sufficient grass has been established in late 2023);

¢ the redevelopment of the Upper Beaconsfield BMX
Track; and

* the sealing of several roads as part of Cardinia Shire
Council's $25 million Better Local Roads - Strategic
Sealed Roads project including the entire length of
McGregor Road and Soldiers Road in Rythdale.

Improved Catani Recreation Reserve cricket nets and
refreshed courts at Beaconsfield Tennis Club were also
delivered.

ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

Responsible financial management

We welcomed the community’s contribution in preparing
the 2023-2024 Council Budget and were delighted

to receive 286 submissions during the six-month
development process. Council invited a second round of
community input after the draft document was presented
to citizens in May 2023.

The final Budget was successfully adopted and features
more than $284.87 million of capital works set to be
completed over the next four years.

Events that inspired

It was a year filled with plenty of opportunities to get out
into the community and strengthen our connections with
residents. The festive season brought with it an especially
thriving calendar of events including the Pakenham
Christmas Carols, which almost 5,000 people enjoyed.

We also stood united with hundreds of passionate
citizens to walk against family violence through the
streets of Pakenham as part of Together We Can, a joint
initiative between Cardinia Shire Council, Family Life, The
University of Melbourne and the Australian Government’s
Department of Social Services. We were incredibly proud
of Cardinia Shire’s residents for taking a firm position
against family violence, violence against women, and
violence against children in our community.

Through this annual report we aim to provide you with
a comprehensive insight into Council’s operations

and achievements. We look forward to maintaining
transparency, delivering significant projects and
broadening our presence in the community as Cardinia
Shire prospers.

Carol Jeffs

Chief Executive Officer

(T
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Financial summary

Comprehensive Income Statement

The Comprehensive Income Statement identifies income and
expenses for 2022-23. For the year ending 30 June 2023,
Council’s operating result was a surplus of $90.8 million (see
Figure 1), which was higher than the budgeted surplus of
$80.8 million.

Revenue exceeded budget by $10.5 million, largely due

to the receipt of higher than anticipated ($16.1 million)
developer contributions, including roads, footpaths, drains,
bridges, land, and land under roads. In addition, increases
to interest rates as set by the Reserve Bank of Australia
during the year increased Council’s return on investments by
approximately $4.0 million. The early receipt of the 2023-24
Victorian Local Government Grant Commission payment
provided a further favourable result of $4.3 million against
budget. These favourable variances were partly offset by a
reduction in capital grants ($15.0 million) as recognition of
budgeted grants were rephased to align with updated project
delivery timelines.

Operating expenditure was $0.5 million higher than budget.
This was mainly due to increased employee costs resulting
from newly appointed positions and increased casual

staff and overtime. The unbudgeted net loss on disposal

of infrastructure assets of $1.5 million was offset by a
reduction in depreciation expense of $1.5 million in line
with updated road project timelines and updated useful
lives and depreciation rates following an external revaluation
completed on buildings during the year.

Figure 1. Operating result $ million
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Section 2 Year in review

The 2022-23 adjusted underlying result is a deficit of
$0.2 million, which is an improvement on the 2021-22
result of a $0.6 million deficit. Council’s adjusted
underlying result adjusts the operating performance

by removing the impact of non-recurring capital-related
income used to fund the development of Council assets
(see Figure 2). This improvement is largely attributable
to the increased interest revenue resulting from a higher
interest rate return achieved in 2022-23 compared to
2021-22.

Figure 2. Adjusted underlying result $
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Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet represents the overall financial worth
of Council (net assets). This comprises what Council owns
as assets (total assets) less what it owes as liabilities
(see Figure 3). Net Assets on 30 June 2023 totalled

$2.5 billion; an increase of $263.2 million from 30 June
2022. This increase is mainly due to the increased value
of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment assets
following the addition of new and contributed assets of
$101.1 million and the revaluation of existing assets at
$172.3 million.
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Figure 3. Assets $ million
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Cash Position

The Statement of Cash Flows provides a summary of
Council’s cash receipts (inflows) and cash payments
(outflows) during the year. The closing cash and cash
equivalents balance as at 30 June 2023 was $25.8
million, a $4.8 million increase from 2021-22. Long-term
investments as at 30 June 2023 was $138.0 million, an
increase of $26.5 million from the previous year. This
results in total cash and investments of $163.8 million,
an overall increase of $31.3 million (see Figure 4). The
annual increase in cash and cash equivalents is largely
due to an increased value of grants received in advance
of associated works. These grants will be utilised as works
are completed in the coming years.

Figure 4. Cash and investments $ million
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Statement of Capital Works

The Statement of Capital Works identifies costs of
constructing or acquiring property, infrastructure, and
plant.

Council spent $56.3 million on capital works during
2022-23, which was a $4.0 million increase from 2021-
22 (see Figure 5). Over $25 million of this was spent on
road works including but not limited to works at Bayview
Road intersection, Tivendale Road Intersection, and
McGregor Road. Buildings across Cardinia had over $10
million of works completed, which included works at Brunt
Road Integrated Children Facility, Timbertop Children’s
Facility and Cardinia Youth Facility.

Figure 5. Capital works program $ million
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Grant funding

During 2022-23, Council recognised a total of $42.9
million in Commonwealth and Victorian State Government
funding. This includes $18.8 million in financial assistance
grants, $2.1 million to support Maternal and Child

Health services and $15.5 million for investment in local
infrastructure. Total grants recognised has reduced by
$0.8 million compared to the previous year.

The full amount of grants recognised during the year is
reported within Note 3.4 of the Financial Statements.

Cardinia Shire Council
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Description of operations

A broad range of services and activities
are provided by Cardinia Shire Council
each year. These include everything
from family and children’s services,

to maintaining good community
infrastructure, such as parks, reserves,
open spaces, youth facilities and waste
management. Other areas of responsibility
include business development, ensuring
accountability for Council’s Budget and
planning for new developments.

Our initiatives are always diverse and contribute to
achieving Cardinia Shire Council’s vision as outlined in
the Council Plan. You can refer to the ‘Our Performance’
section on page 59 of this report for further information.

Economic factors

A few budgeted priorities encountered high construction
costs during the planning and delivery of the Capital
Works Program. These were due to uncontrollable market
conditions, while COVID-19 restrictions played a further
part, impacting site operations and resulting in delays.
Some projects were further delayed due to the necessary
reprioritisation of projects to ensure financial sustainability
and meet expectations within the wider community.

Cardinia Shire Council
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Major achievements

Council continued to implement its short and long-term
strategies through its Capital Works Program, including
one-year, 5-year and 10-year plans aligned to the Council
Plan’s actions and budgets. As a result, the goal of
financial sustainability was supported, and framework was
provided to help monitor Council’s financial performance
while delivering projects.

Major changes

Cardinia Shire Council’s 5-year forward planning and
delivery of the Capital Works Program was reviewed and
updated to best match Council’s ability to deliver the
program successfully.

Major capital works

Cardinia Shire Council undertakes capital works to provide
new community assets and improve existing assets. We
have developed and delivered many projects throughout
the 2022-23 financial year to improve community
infrastructure. They will enable Council to deliver better
services, amenities, improved access, and quality facilities
to the wider community. The following tables outline these
projects.
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Better Local Roads Program - Princes Highway intersection project

Description Several priority intersections along the Princes Highway will be upgraded over the next 3 years as part of our Better
Local Roads Program. The Princes Highway intersection project will provide safer travel for road users while reducing
congestion and catering to future increases in traffic.

Update Bayview Road and Princes Highway intersection in Officer, and Tivendale Road-Station Street and Princes Highway
intersection in Officer are well underway with completion expected late 2023 and early 2024 respectively. Other
Princes Highway intersections being considered for upgrade include: Brunt Road/Whiteside Road in Beaconsfield
McMullen Road in Officer; Arena Parade in Officer; and Thewlis Road in Pakenham.

The Princes Highway intersections at Beaconsfield - O’Neil Road intersection and Glismann Road/Beaconsfield
Avenue intersection - have been completed.

Start 2020

End 2024

Cost $36 million funded by Council ($18.3 million) and the Australian Government’s Urban Congestion Fund ($17.8
million).

Better Local Roads Program - Sealing the Hills project

Description The Sealing the Hills project will involve sealing 38 roads in the Dandenong Ranges and surrounds over the next 3
years.

Update Works have been completed on Armstrong Road (Beaconsfield), Station Road, Anzac Street, and Heroes Road
(Gembrook), and Beenak East Road (Gembrook) with work nearing completion on Innes Road (Gembrook). Works
are underway on Baker Street-Glen Road package (Cockatoo), Caroline Avenue package (Cockatoo) and Russell-
Blackwood package (Gembrook). Six road packages are due to commence by end of 2023 or early 2024.

Start 2021
End 2025
Cost $48 million, 85% of which is funded by $41 million in Australian Government funding and the remaining 15% co-

funded by Council and landowners via a special charge scheme.
Better Local Roads Program - Strategic sealed roads project

Description The Strategic sealed roads project will involve sealing 40 kms of unsealed roads in 7 locations across the shire to
improve connections to the existing road network and safety. The Strategic sealed roads project is part of our Better
Local Roads Program.

Update This year has seen the delivery of LL and Armytage roads in Officer, and McGregor, Soldiers and Hobson roads in
Rythdale. A construction contract has been awarded for Dore Road, Nar Nar Goon. Detailed designs are completed
for Mt Lyall Road, with works due to commence later in 2023. Boundary Drain Road (Station Street to Denhams
Road) and Main Drain Road (Denhams Road to Ballarto Road), Koo Wee Rup are complete.

Start 2019
End 2025
Cost $25 million

Cardinia Shire Council
Annual Report 2022-23

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023 33



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023 ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

Bunyip Soccer Field Redevelopment, Bunyip

Description The Bunyip soccer field has received a full reconstruction including an overlayed cricket field, new LED 100 lux
lighting, perimeter fencing and supporting infrastructure to connect the field with the pavilion. The work will now
accommodate both junior and senior requirements.

Update The soccer field works have been completed, with the field currently under maintenance while the new grass
establishes. It is due to be handed over to the club in January 2024. Pavilion interface works are complete. Lighting
towers have been erected, with final electrical works underway.

Start September 2022
End August 2023
Cost $1.55 million

Nar Nar Goon Recreation Reserve - oval redevelopment, Nar Nar Goon

Description Redevelopment of the existing oval surface including improved drainage capacity.

Works included a new playing surface, full subsurface drainage, upgrade of surrounding pipework and retaining of
existing irrigation.

Update The oval works have been completed and the ground was handed over to the club for use in time for the 2023
football season.

Start November 2022

End June 2023

Cost $1.015 million

Cockatoo southern tennis court redevelopment, Cockatoo

Description Removal of existing 2 tennis courts and construction of 2 new courts, LED lighting, perimeter fencing, drainage,
connecting pathways and other infrastructure.

Update The new courts and surrounding infrastructure have been completed and handed over to the tennis club.
Start November 2022

End June 2023

Cost $600,000

IYU athletics track, Pakenham
Description Construction of a new athletics track & field facility including 10-lane synthetic track, 100-metre grass track and
grass infield with irrigation.

Update The athletics track has been completed; the grass infield is in an establishment period. The track is due to open to
the public for use in late 2023.

Start January 2022
End October 2023
Cost $3.5 million
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Cardinia Youth Hub, Pakenham

Description The My Place youth centre is being moved to James Street, Pakenham. The new centre will be called ‘Cardinia Youth
Hub’. The 3-level, new building will have counselling rooms, a hangout space, internet cafe with 8 computers and
access to free Wi-Fi, recording booth, classrooms, and a rooftop recreation space with a basketball hoop.

Update The project contractor is continuing site construction. There have been delays due to adverse weather conditions
and construction implications. Project completion is expected in early 2024.

Start March 2022

End 2024

Cost $6.3 million

Playground renewal program

Description The Playground Renewal Program is an annual capital works program aimed at renewing and upgrading
Council’s existing playgrounds across the Shire. Council undertakes community engagement, design and
the delivery of play spaces that cater for children of all ages. Three play spaces were renewed during the 2022-
23 financial year including Creekwood Reserve (Pakenham), Parman Avenue Reserve (Pakenham) and The
Parkway (Pakenham). Creekwood Reserve play space received a $90,000 funding contribution from the Victorian
Government, and Parman Avenue play space received a $62,278 funding contribution from the Australian
Government.

These play spaces were delivered on time and on budget.

Update Construction of the play spaces is now complete.
Start July 2022

End June 2023

Cost $497,150

Upper Beaconsfield Reserve BMX Track upgrade

Description As part of Council’s BMX renewal program, the Upper Beaconsfield BMX track was renewed with improved features.
Following two rounds of community engagement, the project has delivered a bike track that meets the needs of
the local community and visitors to the Reserve. The track upgrade was completed using a design developed via
consultation with the community. The upgraded track opened for use in December 2022.

Update Construction completed
Start July 2022

End December 2022

Cost $125,000
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Road pavement renewal program

Description The 2022-23 road pavement renewal and rehabilitation program involves the complete restoration of a number of
roads across the shire.

Update Reconstruction works associated with the deterioration of pavements were completed along Toomuc Valley Road
(Pakenham), Heads Road (Yannathan) and Tynong-Bayles Road (Cora Lynn). Works included the removal and/or
stabilisation of existing pavement and an improved pavement make-up. All removed material was recycled locally.
The works addressed the continual maintenance and repair costs associated with these roads, increasing time
efficiency for Council’s Road Maintenance team and improving the overall safety, ‘ride-ability’ and appearance of the

roads.
Start July 2022
End June 2023
Cost $2.3 million funded by Council ($500,000) and Australian Government’s Roads to Recovery program ($1.7m)

Timbertop Integrated Children and Family Centre

Description Construction of the Kurmboon Integrated Children and Family Centre (Timbertop, Officer), including a kindergarten,
3 consulting rooms for professionals such as maternal and child health, a community room, staff room, amenities
and associated equipment, furniture, outdoor play areas and car parking.

Update Construction is complete and the centre is operational.
Start Design: August 2019
Construction: March 2021
End June 2023
Cost $5.3 million
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Cardinia Shire profile

Location

An area of 1,280km2 is known as Cardinia Shire, located
55 kilometres south-east of Melbourne’s central business
district. As one of 10 ‘Interface Councils’ on the outskirts of
metropolitan Melbourne, Cardinia is where urban and rural
areas meet.

Key road and rail links between Melbourne and West
Gippsland operate via the Princes Highway and Gippsland
railway corridor that run east-west through the centre of
Cardinia Shire. The western end of this corridor comprises
about 10% of Cardinia Shire’s land area. It is also the main
area of growth, encompassing Beaconsfield, Officer and
Pakenham.

The municipality’s large rural population resides outside of
this growth area in 27 townships, providing unique service
provision challenges for Council at times. The northern part
of the shire is in the foothills of the Dandenong Ranges,
which includes Bunyip State Park and Cardinia Reservoir. The
southern part of Cardinia Shire plays home to the Koo Wee
Rup swamp and Western Port Bay.

History

Places of both local and state significance are included

in the shire’s diverse blend of natural and cultural sites.
These heritage spots reflect the Cardinia Shire’s evolving
periods and the people who have shaped them including
Aboriginal Australians - the first people to use the rugged
landscape - as well as loggers and gold miners of the
foothills who helped to drain the former Koo Wee Rup
Swamp and the pastoral settlement. The municipality
continues to evolve as new developments and residents
move into the area each week.

Four main development periods have formed Cardinia
Shire, and they are:

* Aboriginal cultural landscape at first contact
(c1835-¢1860);

¢ pastoral era and land settlement (c1838-¢1870);

¢ selection era and establishment of service
communities (c1860-¢1940); and

¢ post-war residential expansion (c1945 to present day).

Local governing bodies were established in 1862 after the
Berwick District Roads Board launched, followed by the
establishment of the Shire of Berwick in 1868. This year

Cardinia Shire Council
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Section 3 Our Council

marked the 155th anniversary of the Shire of Berwick,
which evolved into the Shire of Pakenham and then
Cardinia Shire.

Population

Cardinia Shire is one of Victoria’'s fastest-growing local
government areas.

* An average of 3 new households move into the Shire
every day.

¢ The estimated population is 129,896 as of 2023.

¢ Cardinia Shire’s population is predicted to rise by
approximately 42,361 over the next 10 years until
2033, and 52,937 over the next 18 years until
2041 with a projection of total population to then be
approximately 182,833.

* The median age of residents is 34, which is 3 years
younger than that of Greater Melbourne.

¢ The largest percentage of Cardinia Shire’s population
are parents and homebuilders aged 35-49 (21%),
followed by young people aged 12-24 (17%), and finally
the young workforce aged 25-34 (16%).

¢ Cardinia Shire has a higher proportion of young children
aged 14 years and under (23%) compared with Greater
Melbourne (18%) and a lower proportion of people aged
60+ (17%) than Greater Melbourne (20%).

The Victorian Government nominated the combined
Casey-Cardinia area as one of five regions around the
fringe of metropolitan Melbourne where new housing
and population growth will be concentrated. In light of
this, dramatic population growth within Cardinia Shire is
expected over the next 20 years.
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Table 1: Estimated 2023 population and projected 2033 and 2041 population by service age group

2023

Age group (years) Number %
Babies and preschoolers 10,476 8.1%
(Oto 4)

Primary schoolers 15,928 12.3%
(5to 11)

Secondary schoolers 10,330 8.0%
(12 to 17)

Tertiary education and independence 11,054 8.5%
(18 to 24)

Young workforce 20,656 15.9%
(25 to 34)

Parents and homebuilders 27,299 21.0%
(35 to 49)

Older workers and pre-retirees 13,959 10.7%
(50 to 59)

Empty nesters and retirees 10,837 8.3%
(60 to 69)

Seniors 9,652 7.4%
(70 to 84)

Elderly aged 1,743 1.3%
(85 and over)

Total people 129,896 100.0

2023 to 2041

Number % - Number
(% change)

13,841 8.0%

21,263 12.3%

13,038 7.6%

14,394 8.4%

25,760 15.0%

35,912 20.8%

17,624 10.2%

14,795 8.6% -

15,409 8.9% -

3,038 1.8% -

172,257

-8%)

Percentage figures and totals may not equate exactly due to rounding. Current forecasts extend to 2041.

Cardinia Shire has a higher proportion of young families
than the Greater Melbourne average. In contrast, the
proportion within the 60+ age group is lower than the
Melbourne average. It's important to note this pattern

is typical of growth areas located on the fringe of large
cities as young couples often relocate from rental
accommodation in inner suburbs as they hunt down more
affordable housing and larger dwellings in outer suburbs.

An estimated 22,232 residents aged 60 and over continue
to reside in the shire and this figure represents 17% of
Cardinia’s total population. This figure is also predicted to
increase to approximately 39,276 over the next 18 years
until 2041. With this increase will come a greater demand
for community and aged services, health services, local
infrastructure upgrades and public transport.

The 2021 Census found that 28.5% of Cardinia Shire’s
population identified as being of a Christian faith, with
Catholic the most dominant denomination chosen by
residents. A growing number of residents (44%) indicated
they had no religion, which is a higher proportion

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023

compared with Greater Melbourne (37%). The figure is
also a 7.3% increase from the 2016 Census.

Only a small proportion of culturally and linguistically
diverse (CALD) communities reside within Cardinia Shire,
which is in line with current population growth, and this
number is increasing. In the 2021 Census, residents who
speak a language other than English represented 20% of
the Cardinia Shire population, a significant increase from
11% reported in 2016.

The most common birth countries of non-Australian born
residents are India, England, Sri Lanka, New Zealand, and
the Philippines.

Cardinia Shire has an Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
population of 1,145 residents representing 1% of the
population and remaining in line with Victorian trends. This
figure has risen from 780 in 2016.

Cardinia Shire Council
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Households and housing

As of the 2021 Census, there were approximately 41,834
households in Cardinia Shire.

* Around 39% of households comprise couples with
children, a figure greater than the Melbourne average of
33%.

¢ Other households are comprised of couples without
children (approximately 26%), one-parent families (11%)
and single residents (19%).

¢ Of Cardinia Shire households, 22% own their home,
48% have a mortgage, and 22% rent. The proportion
of households with a mortgage is higher than the
metropolitan Melbourne average of 36%.

Education

Cardinia Shire residents are generally attaining lower levels
of education and training than other areas in metropolitan
Melbourne. The 2021 Census found that 52% of residents
had completed Year 12 or equivalent, in comparison to the
metropolitan Melbourne average of 64%.

At present, the lack of a university campus and limited TAFE
courses available within Cardinia Shire puts a ceiling on the

availability of post-secondary education opportunities locally
for residents.

Cardinia Shire Council
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Industry and economy

The 2021 Census results found that 18,840 residents
were employed in jobs within Cardinia Shire, while more
than half of the working population travelled outside the
area to work (62%).

* 95% of those able to work are employed and 4.3% of
the population is unemployed, a figure that is slightly
lower than metropolitan Melbourne (5.3%).

¢ Of those employed, 61% work full time and 32% work
part time.

¢ Construction (14%), health care and social assistance
(13%), retail (10%), and manufacturing (9%) are the top
four industries of employment among Cardinia Shire
residents.

¢ The most dominant occupations within Cardinia Shire
are technicians and trade workers (17%).

The 2021 Census also indicated that the average median
weekly incomes are higher in Cardinia Shire than wider
Victoria (see Income and Work in Cardinia - 2021, all
persons, QuickStats).
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2020-24 Council term

For the election held on 24 October 2020, the shire was
subdivided into 9 single-member wards (each represented
by 1 councillor).

* Beacon Hills Ward: Beaconsfield (part of), Beaconsfield

ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

Officer Ward: Beaconsfield (part of) and Officer
(part of)

Pakenham Hills Ward: Pakenham (part of)

Ranges Ward: Avonsleigh, Clematis, Cockatoo,
Emerald, Gembrook, Menzies Creek and Nangana

Upper, Dewhurst, Guys Hill, Mount Burnett and

¢ Toomuc Ward: Officer (part of) and Pakenham (part of)
Pakenham Upper

* Westernport Ward: Bayles, Caldermeade, Cardinia,
Catani, Cora Lynn, Dalmore, Heath Hill, lona, Koo Wee
Rup, Koo Wee Rup North, Lang Lang, Lang Lang East,
Longwarry, Maryknoll, Modella, Monomeith, Nyora (part
of), Officer South, Pakenham South, Rythdale, Tooradin,
Vervale and Yannathan.

¢ Bunyip Ward: Bunyip, Bunyip North, Garfield, Garfield
North, Nar Nar Goon, Nar Nar Goon North, Pakenham
(part of), Tynong and Tynong North

* Central Ward: Pakenham (part of)
¢ Henty Ward: Pakenham (part of)
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Councillors

Nine councillors were elected in October 2020 to serve for a 4-year period until October 2024.

Beacon Hills Ward

Cr Brett Owen

First elected 2005
Mayor 2012-13

Deputy Mayor 2013-14
Mayor 2016-17

Deputy Mayor 2017-18
Mayor 2020-21

Bunyip Ward

Cr Graeme Moore

First elected 2011
Mayor 2013-14
Deputy Mayor 2014-15
Mayor 2018-19
Deputy Mayor 2019-20

Central Ward

Cr Collin Ross

First elected 2008
Mayor 2017-18
Deputy Mayor 2018-19

Henty Ward

Cr Carol Ryan
First elected 2016

Officer Ward

Cr Tammy Radford
First elected 2020
Deputy Mayor 2021-22
Mayor 2022-23

Cardinia Shire Council

Annual Report 2022-23

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023

Pakenham Hills Ward

Cr Jack Kowarzik
First elected 2020
Deputy Mayor 2022-23

Ranges Ward

Cr Jeff Springfield

First elected 2016
Mayor 2019-20
Deputy Mayor 2020-21
Mayor 2021-22

Toomuc Ward

Cr Stephanie Davies
First elected 2020

Westernport Ward

Cr Kaye Cameron
First elected 2021

Council offices

Civic Centre

20 Siding Avenue, Officer
Postal address PO Box 7

Pakenham Victoria 3810

Phone: 1300 787 624
Email: mail@cardinia.vic.gov.au
Web:  www.cardinia.vic.gov.au
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Our people
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Organisation structure Section 4 Our People

Cardinia Shire Council is the governing body that appoints the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) to be responsible for the organisation’s day-to-day operations in accordance with
the strategic directions of the Council Plan. Our Senior Leadership Team consists of the
CEO and 4 General Managers who lead the organisation.

Below is the Cardinia Shire Council organisation structure in 2022-23.

Council

CEO
Carol Jeffs

General Manager
Governance, Facilities

General Manager General Manager
Customer, People and Infrastructure and
Performance Environment
Jenny Scicluna Peter Benazic
(until March 2023)

General Manager Liveable

Communities
Lili Rosic

and Economy
Debbie Tyson

Planning and Design

Governance Community Infrastructure . .

Inf . . N Community and Family
Building and Facilities piommationiSeiices Dtz Services
Regulatory Services &15:223:::5 Service Environment and Heritage e ae CaiEsEs)
Arts, Advocacy and s Operations Communities
Economy Heelglte @l i Infrastructure Services Future Communities
Risk, Health and Safety GmimmiftEiteis i)

Engagement

Finance

Cardinia Shire Council
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Meet our Senior Leadership Team

Carol Jeffs

Chief Executive Officer

Carol was appointed Chief
Executive Officer of Cardinia
Shire Council in October
2018. She has almost 20
years’ experience as a senior
local government executive
and has led planning, corporate services, economic
development, and community services at both regional
and inner metropolitan councils.

She held the positions of Interim Chief Executive Officer
and General Manager Community and Economic
Development at the City of Port Phillip and was previously
General Manager Governance and Manager City Planning
at Latrobe City Council.

Carol has extensive experience in local government
management and leadership, and a demonstrated

commitment to community engagement and participation.

She is passionate about making a difference by working
closely with the local community, Councillors, and
employees to continue delivering high-quality services
and infrastructure across the shire.

Advocating for the needs of Cardinia Shire is another
key priority. Carol is committed to engaging with
residents, community groups, farmers, businesses
and landowners to work towards shared goals for the
benefit of the community.

Carol holds qualifications in business (Bachelor of
Business) and economics (Master of Economics), is a
Harvard University Executive Program graduate and a
member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023
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Jenny Scicluna
General Manager
Customer, People
and Performance
(until March 2023)

Jenny has more than 20

years’ experience in the local
government sector, leading a
broad range of high-performing teams.

A dedicated leader who is well known for her high level of
influencing, organisational and interpersonal leadership
skills, Jenny consistently builds positive teams and
cultures and is committed to supporting staff to reach
their full potential.

Prior to her appointment as General Manager Customer,
People and Performance, Jenny served 4 years as Cardinia
Shire Council’s General Manager Community Wellbeing
and 6 months as Acting General Manager Corporate
Services. She has also led a broad range of community
services at Maroondah and Banyule City councils.

Jenny is committed to people leadership and building a
positive, customer-focused culture of service to others.
Interacting with and relating to people is what she enjoys
most about her role, along with building positive and
strong teams and supporting staff to do their best.

Jenny holds a Master of Human Resources Management,
Diploma and Bachelor of Education, and Diploma of
Frontline Management.

Business unit areas

* Information services

* Customer and Service Improvement
¢ People and Culture

e Communications and Engagement
* Finance

Peter Benazic
General Manager
Infrastructure

and Environment

Peter is a dedicated leader
who is recognised for

his relentless pursuit of
excellence, people leadership
skills and customer focus.

Peter has over 20 years’ experience in local government
leadership roles across operations, maintenance, parks,

Cardinia Shire Council
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waste, and project management. He also has experience
in the private, community and not-for-profit sectors.

Peter’s focus at Cardinia Shire Council includes the
delivery of new infrastructure and major capital works
programs, the shire’s heritage, natural environment,
energy and climate change, and the continued
maintenance of the shire’s roads, drainage, parks and
gardens. Maintaining and renewing existing assets is
another key priority to ensure long-term sustainability,
and that the municipality’s services and infrastructure
continue to meet the needs of the growing community.

Peter’s wealth of experience in local government has
included senior roles at Port Phillip, Banyule and
Maribyrnong City councils. As Cardinia Shire Council’s
General Manager Infrastructure and Environment, Peter
is committed to building a customer-focussed culture and
achieving positive outcomes for the community.

Peter holds 3 tertiary qualifications, including a Double
Master of Management, Master of Administrative
Management and Master of Business Administration
(MBA), as well as a Graduate Certificate in

Project Management.

Business unit areas

e Community Infrastructure Delivery
¢ Environment and Heritage

¢ QOperations

* Infrastructure Services

¢ Major Projects

Debbie Tyson
General Manager Governance,
Facilities and Economy

Debbie is a skilled and
accomplished local government
manager with 19 years’
experience in leading skilled teams across a range of
portfolios.

Politically astute, Debbie is a results-oriented leader with a
proven ability in policy development, project management
and building cross-government relationships to deliver on
strategic outcomes.

Prior to her appointment as Cardinia Shire Council’s
General Manager Governance, Facilities and Economy,
Debbie was the Executive Manager of the CEO Office for 6
months, Manager Community and Family Services for one
year and Manager Development and Compliance Services
for 4 years.

Cardinia Shire Council
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She has also held a number of leadership roles in the
statutory planning field at South Gippsland and Baw Baw
Shire councils and was the Manager Statutory Planning,
Building and Environment Sustainability at Latrobe City
Council for 3 years.

Debbie has a Graduate Diploma in Planning &
Environment from RMIT University and is a graduate
of the LGPro Emerging Leaders Program, Gippsland
Community Leadership Program and LGPro Executive
Managers Program.

Business unit areas

* Governance

» Building and Facilities

* Regulatory Services

¢ Arts, Advocacy and Economy
* Risk, Health and Safety

Lili Rosic
General Manager
Liveable Communities

Lili joined Cardinia Shire Council
in August 2021, bringing

more than 20 years of leadership experience in diverse
portfolios including Transport, City Amenity, Sustainable
Development, Safety, and a range of Community Services.

As an accomplished senior executive, Lili has a proven
track record in engaging and partnering with key
stakeholders to solve complex problems and transition
ideas into reality.

As a former manager of family and children’s/youth
services for Glein Eira, Bayside and Kingston City
councils, Lili is passionate about enhancing liveability and
wellbeing, alongside future planning.

In her role as General Manager Liveable Cities, Lili
values building trust and a positive, unified culture. She
takes a strategic approach to delivering and inspiring
high achievement in her teams by being a values-driven,
supportive and collaborative leader.

Lili holds formal qualifications in Health and Community
Nursing, midwifery, a Master of Business Administration
from Monash University, and is a Graduate of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Business unit areas

* Planning and Design

¢ Community and Family Services

* Active and Connected Communities
e Future Communities
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Council employees

Employee overview

This financial year, Council has continued to create
improved efficiencies and effectiveness in the way it
works, both with employees and as an organisation.
Council met its strategic goals and also improved its
financial sustainability.

Whilst transitioning out of the effects of the COVID-19
pandemic and lockdowns into a ‘new normal’, it was more
important than ever for Cardinia Shire Council to enhance
wellbeing and connection among employees.

With a focus on wellbeing, Council has created many
new resources and opportunities for employees to
strengthen their personal wellbeing, including partnering
with Converge International and various other external
organisations to deliver a series of seminars. These
seminars were very well attended and included topics
such as Nutrition for Life, Work-Life Integration, Dealing
with Uncertainty, and Engaging Emotional Intelligence.

Creating a workplace where employees feel safe, confident
and are able to thrive is a priority for Cardinia Shire Council.

Organisational culture

Working together, doing things differently and preparing for
the future are the three cornerstones of Cardinia Shire’s
culture, helping Council to deliver on strategy. It's not just
what employees do, but how they do it that’s important.

Cardinia Shire Council culture is embedded throughout the
organisation’s varied processes, procedures, leadership
and day-to-day employee experiences. Council’s employees
have these values at the heart of everything they do.

Inspired leadership

Employee development was centred on three core pillars
during the reporting period: leadership, values and
innovation. Council is committed to fostering a cohesive,
flexible and motivated workforce that delivers outstanding
outcomes for the greater community.

The COVID-19 pandemic pushed Council to review the way
in which training and development was conducted within
the organisation, so the existing Leadership Fundamentals
Program and Everyday Leadership Program were put
under the microscope.

As a result, a new leadership program, delivered virtually
and titled ‘Leading People for Connection, Wellbeing and
Performance’, focused on leading in a new environment.
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Section 4 Our People

Centred around workplace culture, the program strives to
help employees stay connected and supported as Cardinia
Shire Council continues to achieve its targets.

Employee engagement

In October 2021, we undertook the OurVoice@Cardinia
employee engagement survey, which found the majority
of employees feel a true sense of job satisfaction working
at Cardinia Shire Council, and employees feel that they
achieve a good work-life balance.

The results from the survey were communicated across
the organisation at all levels and the data used to initiate
vital conversations about employee culture at Cardinia
Shire Council. The results informed action planning to
ensure Council continues to be a wonderful place to work.

The next OurVoice@Cardinia employee engagement survey
is due to be undertaken at the beginning of the 2023-24
Financial Year.

Wellbeing

The Wellbeing Framework informed Cardinia Shire
Council’s focus over the past year, with five key elements
leading this work: physical, emotional, intellectual, social
and financial wellbeing. Resources, tools, events and
support services were provided to employees, aligning to
those specific five areas. Council remains committed to its
people now and into the future.

Continuing to learn

A range of learning and development programs are

on offer to all employees from Council, as aligned to

the Leadership Capability Framework and Council’s

organisational needs.

These programs include:

e the Cardinia Leadership Academy, in partnership
with DeakinCo., where staff are able to undertake
professional development to become stronger leaders.

* arange of LGPro offerings, staff coaching and mentoring.

e support to undertake formal education - from
certificate level courses to postgraduate qualifications -
as part of Council’s Education Support Program.

 the delivery of Council’s 18-month traineeship
program, which offers youth placement opportunities
for trainees to experience working in various business
units across Council.

Cardinia Shire Council
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Staffing information at 30 June 2023

* 63.03% of Council employees were female, including casuals

* 36.97% of Council employees were male, including casuals

* 0% of Council employees were non-binary/intersex/unspecified, including casuals
¢ 48.86% of full-time positions were held by women

¢ 15.32% of part time positions were held by men

¢ 34.63% of Council staff worked part-time

Table 2. Staffing numbers

Classification Males Females Indeterminate/ TOTAL
intersex/unspecified

Full time 188 172 0 352
Part time 34 188 0 222
Casual 23 44 0 67

Total 237 404 (V] 641

Table 3. Detailed staff breakdown

Employee type/ Customer, People Infrastructure and | Liveable Governance, TOTALS
gender and Performance Environment Communities Facilities and
Economy

Full time female 1 41 28 67 85! 172

Full time male 24 114 15 27 180

Part time female 32 15 76 65 188

Part time male 4 S 6 21 34

Casual female 1 0 12 Silt 44

Casual male 1 1 4 17 23

Casual 0 0 0 0

indeterminate/

intersex/

unspecified

Totals 1 103 161 180 196 641
Table 4. Staff demographics by age

Age ‘ Percentage

15-19 0.63

20-24 4.37

25-34 18.25

35-44 28.71

45-54 21.37

55-64 20.12

65 and over 6.55

Cardinia Shire Council
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Table 5. Staff by employment classification and gender

Employment Female FTE Male FTE Indeterminate/ Total FTE
classification intersex/ unspecified

FTE
Band 1 7.65 3 0 10.65
Band 2 0 0 0 0
Band 3 1 42 0 43
Band 4 39.23 20.86 0 60.09
Band 5 74.4 31.60 0 106
Band 6 62.97 39.21 0 102.18
Band 7 24.56 24.53 0 49.09
Band 8 26.49 17 0 43.49
Band not applicable 35.61 13.64 0 49.25

Note: Council’s payroll system provides the above data, which includes staff on extended leave without pay and parental leave. Where this is the case,
employee numbers may be exaggerated due to extended position coverage. The data does not include contractors employed by other parties.
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Equal employment opportunity statement

Cardinia Shire Council is an equal opportunity employer
committed to providing a safe and supportive work
environment free from unlawful discrimination, bullying,
harassment, sexual harassment, and vilification, and
where all individuals associated with the organisation treat
each other with respect.

Council is an Equal Opportunity and Child Safe employer
that supports inclusiveness and diversity. We welcome
applications from people from a diverse background
including but not limited to those identifying as LGBTIQ+,
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander, people from culturally
and linguistically diverse (CALD) backgrounds, and people
with disability.

All our employees are expected to behave in a professional
manner and to treat each other with dignity and

respect while at work. Council will take reasonable and
proportionate measures to prevent and eliminate unlawful
discrimination, bullying, harassment, sexual harassment
and vilification.

Council’'s Managing Workplace Complaints and Grievances

Procedures are in place to ensure reports relating to
experiencing or witnessing inappropriate workplace
behaviours such as unlawful discrimination, bullying,
harassment, sexual harassment and vilification are
treated seriously, and are investigated thoroughly
and confidentially.

Victimisation is not tolerated and employees who feel they
are being treated poorly or victimised because of reporting
a concern or for being involved in the investigation process
are encouraged to report this treatment immediately.

...
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Council aims to ensure the most efficient and equitable
use and development of the skills and talents of all staff.
To achieve this, Council has, in consultation with staff,
developed strategies to ensure equality at all stages

of employment, including recruitment, selection and
appointment, promotion, training and all other terms and
conditions of employment.

All new Council staff completed induction training

that included workplace behaviours, including equal
opportunity, sexual harassment and bullying. Refresher
training is coordinated for all staff every 2 years and
Councillors also undertake this training.

ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1
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Governance,
management
and other
information
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Governance

Under the provisions of Section 8 of the
Local Government Act 2020, the role of
council is to provide good governance in
its municipal district for the benefit and
wellbeing of the municipal community.

Council’s key roles include:

¢ considering diverse community needs when
making decisions.

* managing strategic objectives and
monitoring achievements.

¢ being held accountable for management of resources.

* advocating on behalf of the local community.

¢ nurturing community cohesion and encouraging
active participation.

On an ongoing basis, the community is invited to provide
input into Council’s decision-making via consultation,
public forums, and submissions to Special Committees
of Council. A formal decision-making process takes place
during Council meetings.

Council meetings

Council meets on the third Monday of every month and the
Town Planning Committee meets on the first Monday.

These meetings are conducted in the Council Chamber
commencing at 7pm; any members of the public are
welcome to attend. The meetings are also streamed live
for any interested residents to view.
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Section 5 Governance and Management

Committees

As at 30 June 2023, Council’s committees were as follows:

Audit Committee

¢ Council members: Cr Jack Kowarzik and Cr
Stephanie Davies

¢ independent members: Michael Said (Chairperson),
Vincent Philpott and Leanna La Combre

Town Planning Committee

¢ consisting of the whole of Council

Code of conduct

As required by the Local Government Act 2020, Council
reviewed the Code of Conduct and adopted a new Code
of Conduct at the Council Meeting on 15 February 2021.
This Code will be further considered before the Council
Election in October 2024.

Conflict of interest

Councillors are elected by community members to act

in the best interests of their community. When a council
delegates its powers to a council officer or a committee,
the committee or officer also needs to act in the public
interest. A conflict of interest occurs when a personal or
private interest might compromise the ability to act in the
public interest.

Cardinia Shire Council has in place comprehensive details
included in its Governance Rules regarding the disclosure
of a conflict of interest. Declaration of a conflict of interest
is a standard agenda item for all Council and committee
meetings at Cardinia Shire. Council maintains a register of
all disclosed conflict of interests.
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Resources, training and compensation

It is important that Council’s elected representatives are
empowered to undertake their roles and responsibilities
and are provided with the opportunity to acquire new
skills and upgrade their existing capabilities. Council has
adopted a Councillor Expenses Policy which was amended
and updated on 20 September 2021.

Councillor allowances

Council received advice in March 2022 that the
Victorian Independent Remuneration Tribunal had made
a decision on the payment of Mayoral, Deputy Mayoral
and Councillor allowances.

The determination saw an increase to Mayoral and
Councillor allowances, to be phased in over 5 years and 3
years respectively.

Allowances from July 2022 were as follows:

e Mayor $119,316
* Deputy Mayor $59,658
e Councillors $35,972

From 18 December 2022, the allowances increased to:

¢ Mayoral $124,469
¢ Deputy Mayor $62,235
¢ Councillors $37,565

Table 6a. Councillor expenses 2022-23

ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

Councillor expense entitlements

The Councillor Expenses Policy provides for payment of
travel allowances, child care expenses and communication
expenses. Councillors are supplied with a computer and
internet connection, and a mobile phone to be used for
Council business.

The Policy also provides that where the Mayor uses their
private vehicle during their term of Office, they received a
vehicle allowance of $15,000 per annum.

Councillor professional development

The policy supports Councillors to upgrade their skills
during their term of office with an amount of $3,000 per
Councillor per annum, or $12,000 over their 4-year term.
Programs qualifying for expenditure include:

¢ seminars and conferences.
¢ undergraduate and postgraduate studies.
¢ short courses and study tours.

Programs must relate to the areas of local government
activity, leadership and governance in the context of the
role of Councillor, or enhance the personal skills of the
individual to undertake the role.

Travel expenses General expenses Professional
(mcludes childcare) development

Graeme Moore $4835.34

Brett Owen $0

Stephanie Davies $0 $O $0

Collin Ross $4962.34 $0 $1352.50
Carol Ryan $0 $0 $0

Jack Kowarzik $0 $0 $6328.90
Jeff Springfield $810.83 $0 $0
Tammy Radford $0 $0 $0

Kaye Cameron $463.33 $0 $50

Table 6b. Councillor attendance at meetings 2022-23

Briefings Council meetings Town planning attended
(43 meetings) (11 meetings) (8 meetings)

Attended Apologised Attended Apologised Attended Apologised

Cr Brett Owen 42 1 10 1 8 0
Cr Carol Ryan 40 3 11 0 6 2
Cr Collin Ross 39 4 11 0 6 2
Cr Graeme Moore 42 1 11 0 8 0
Cr Jack Kowarzik 43 0 11 0 8 0
Cr Jeff Springfield 40 3 11 0 7 1
Cr Kaye Cameron 41 2 11 0 8 0
Cr Stephanie Davies 28 15 11 0 4 4
Parental leave taken during this time

Cr Tammy Radford 40 8 11 0 8 0
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Management

Audit and Risk Committee

The role of the Audit and Risk Committee is to oversee
and monitor the effectiveness of Council in carrying out
its responsibilities for accountable financial management,
good corporate governance, maintaining an effective
system of internal control and risk management, and
fostering an ethical and inclusive environment.

This Committee consists of 2 councillors and 3
independent members: Michael Said (Chairperson),
Vincent Philpott and Leanna La Combre. Independent
members are appointed for a 2-year term, with a
maximum of 3 terms. The Chair is elected from the
independent members.

The Committee meets regularly throughout the year. The
Internal Auditor, Chief Finance Officer, Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Manager Office of the CEO

attend all Audit and Risk Committee meetings. Other
management representatives attend to present reports
as required, while external auditors attend twice per year.
Recommendations from each Audit and Risk Committee
meeting are subsequently reported to Council.

Internal audit

This function provides independent and objective
assurance that the appropriate processes are in place
across Council. This area is jointly resourced by an Internal
Auditor and an external provider.

A risk-based 3-year Strategic Internal Audit Plan (SIAP)

is revised annually to ensure the audit resources remain
focused on the appropriate areas. The review process
considers Council’s risk framework; Council Plan; the
impact of any change on operations, systems or the
business environment; prior audit coverage and outcomes;
as well as management input. The SIAP is reviewed and
approved by the Audit Committee annually.

The Internal Auditor attends each Audit and Risk
Committee meeting to report on the status of the SIAP,
provide an update on the implementation of audit
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Section 5 Governance and Management

recommendations and present findings. The responsible
general manager and manager for each area reviewed

are required to attend the Audit and Risk Committee
meeting to respond to any questions. All audit issues
identified are risk rated. Recommendations are assigned
to the responsible manager and tracked in Council’s
performance management system. Managers provide
quarterly status updates reviewed by the Internal Auditor
and reported to the Senior Leadership Team and the Audit
and Risk Committee.

The SIAP for 2022-23 was completed with the following
reviews conducted:

e Child Safe Standards

¢ Customer Requests

e Privacy Third-party Management

¢ Payroll (including data analytics)

e Cyber - Internal Vulnerability Assessment
e Cyber - M365 Health Check

* Project management - started in 2022-23 but will be
finalised with management comments in 2023-24

e Maternal & Child Health - started in 2022-23 but will
be finalised in 2023-24

External audit

The Victorian Auditor-General is the external auditor

for Council. For the 2022-23 financial year, the annual
external audit of Council’s Financial Statements and
Performance Statement was conducted by the Victorian
Auditor-General’s representative. They attend the May and
August Audit and Risk Committee meetings to present

the Annual Audit Plan and Independent Audit Report. The
external auditor’s final management letter and responses
are also provided to the Audit and Risk Committee.
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Risk management

Responsibility for risk is allocated to the appropriate
managers through Council’s Risk Management framework.
It provides a comprehensive approach to better integrate
risk management into strategic decision-making, while
also allowing Council to develop an overall approach to
managing risk, remaining committed to an innovative,
strategic direction. The policy ensures Council can
appropriately deal with risk, protect its assets, including
people and property, and create an environment where
all employees assume responsibility for managing risk.
The Corporate Risk Register is subject to ongoing updates
and reviews to ensure it is current and reflective of the
corporate risk profile.

Business continuity

The Business Continuity Plan was updated in 2022-23
and assists Council in providing services to the community
based on the service’s criticality, should Council business
be interrupted by an event. Council places much
importance on minimising the impact on service delivery
to the community in the event of a business interruption.

Workplace safety

Council has maintained a strong focus on continuing its
positive safety culture in 2022-23. Through structured
education and awareness sessions with management

and employees, safety has remained a priority. Council
provides a proactive, early-intervention injury-management
program to its workforce to assist in effectively managing
workplace injuries and WorkCover claims.
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Business improvement - Quality Circles

Launched in February 2018, Quality Circles provides a
space for employees to voice their ideas and utilise their
creative skills to improve processes. Participants identify
problems and implement improvements using a structured
problem-solving process that aims to address the root
causes of problems.

Quality Circles teams engage in short weekly meetings to
work through improvement opportunities in the service
they provide.

The program outcomes are extremely positive. Not only
are process improvements identified and implemented,
the program increases enthusiasm within the business
improvement space. Communication both within

and outside the Quality Circles groups increases as
participants became more engaged and empowered to
make improvements. The program provides an outlet for
participant ideas and creativity. With increases in the
participants’ knowledge of problem-solving techniques
and processes, it is invaluable to the organisation.
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Local Government Community
Satisfaction Survey

As with the previous year, the 2023 Local Government
Community Satisfaction Survey was completed in-person
by door knock via an independent agency. Council uses
the survey results to better understand the needs, wants
and expectations of the community. This helps Council
shape numerous strategic decisions, directions, and the
delivery of services.

The following table shows Cardinia Shire Council’s results
for the core survey measures from the 2023 Survey and
the previous 4 years.

Table 7. Snapshot of Council’s performance

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Trend *

Overall performance 61 B 61 68 66 I
Community 55) 52 54 68 67 1
consultation

Advocacy 58 48 49 66 66 ©
Making community 54 51 55 65 64 I
decisions

Sealed local roads 58 52 56 64 61 !
Customer service 65 63 65 69 70 1

* A horizontal two-headed arrow (<) indicates no statistically significant change from the result of previous year.
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Governance and management checklist

Yes Date of operation Reported
/no (where applicable) date (where
applicable)
Community engagement policy Adopted in accordance Yes 15/02/2021
(policy outlining Council's with section 55
commitment to engaging with of the Act

the community on matters of
public interest)

Community engagement guidelines Current guidelines in Yes 15/02/2021

(guidelines to assist staff to operation
determine when and how to engage
with the community)

Financial Plan Adopted in accordance Yes 21/06/2021

(plan under section 91 of the Act with section 91 of the Act
outlining the financial and non-

financial resources required for at

least the next 10 financial years)

Asset Plan Adopted in accordance Yes 20/6/2022

(plan under section 92 of the with section 92 of the Act
Act setting out the asset

maintenance and renewal needs

for key infrastructure asset classes

for at least the next 10 years)

Revenue and Rating Plan Adopted in accordance Yes 21/06/2021
(plan under section 93 of the Act with section 93 of the Act

setting out the rating structure of

Council to levy rates and charges)

Annual budget Adopted in accordance Yes 27/6/2022
(plan under section 94 of the with section 94 of the Act

Act setting out the services to

be provided and initiatives to

be undertaken during the budget

year and the funding and other

resources required)

Risk policy Current policy in operation  Yes 28/10/2020
(policy outlining Council’s

commitment and approach

to minimising the risks to

Council’s operations)

Fraud policy Current policy in operation  Yes 9/11/2022
(policy outlining Council’'s

commitment and approach to

minimising the risk of fraud)
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Municipal emergency
management plan

Prepared and maintained
in accordance with section
20 of the Emergency
Management

Act 1986

(plan under section 20 of

the Emergency Management

Act 1986 for emergency
prevention, response and recovery)

Procurement policy

(policy under section 108 of the Act
outlining the principles, processes
and procedures that will apply to all
purchases of goods and services by
the Council)

Adopted in accordance
with section 108 of
the Act

Business continuity plan Current plan in operation

(plan setting out the actions that
will be taken to ensure that key
services continue to operate in the
event of a disaster)

Disaster recovery plan Current plan in operation

(plan setting out the actions that
will be undertaken to recover and
restore business capability in the
event of a disaster)

Current framework in
operation

Risk management framework

(framework outlining Council’s
approach to managing risks to the
Council’s operations)

Audit and Risk Committee

(advisory committee of Council

under section 53 of the Act whose

role is to monitor the compliance

of Council policies and procedures,
monitor Council’s financial reporting,
monitor and provide advice on risk
management, and provide oversight on
internal and external audit functions)

Established in accordance
with section 53 of the Act

Internal audit Internal auditor engaged

(independent accounting
professionals engaged by

Council to provide analyses and
recommendations aimed at improving
Council’'s governance, risk and
management controls)

Current framework in
operation

Performance reporting framework
(a set of indicators measuring
financial and non-financial
performance, including the
performance indicators referred

to in section 131 of the 1989 Act)

Cardinia Shire Council
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Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
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Date of operation
(where applicable)

Reported
date (where

applicable)

10/10/2022

18/10/2021

14/12/2019

9/5/2022

28/10/2020

17/8/2020

1/06/2020

15/08/2022,
21/11/2022,
20/02/2023,
15/05/2023
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Council Plan report

(report reviewing the performance of
the Council against the Council Plan,
including the results in relation to
the strategic indicators, for the first
6 months of the financial year)

Financial reporting

(quarterly statements to Council
under section 138(1) of the 1989
Act comparing budgeted revenue
and expenditure with actual
revenue and expenditure)

Risk reporting

(6-monthly reports of

strategic risks to Council’s
operations, their likelihood and
consequences of occurring and
risk minimisation strategies)

Performance reporting

(6-monthly reports of indicators
measuring the results against
financial and non-financial
performance, including performance
indicators referred to in section 131
of the 1989 Act)

Annual report

(annual report under sections 131,
132 and 133 of the 1989 Act to
the community containing a report
of operations and audited financial
performance statements)

Councillor Code of Conduct

(code under section 139 of the Act
setting out the standards of conduct
to be followed by Councillors and
other matters)

Delegations

(document setting out the powers,
duties and functions of Council and
the Chief Executive Officer that have
been delegated to members of staff,
in accordance with sections 11 and
47 of the Act)

Meeting procedures

(Governance Rules under section
60 of the Act governing the conduct
of meetings of Council

and delegated committees.)
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Current report

Quarterly reports
presented to Council

in accordance with section
97(1) of the

Act

Risk reports prepared and
presented

Performance reports
prepared

Considered at the meeting
of Council in accordance
with section 134 of the
1989 Act

Reviewed and adopted in
accordance with section
139 of the Act

Reviewed in accordance
with section 11(7) of the
Act and a register kept in

accordance with sections
11(8) and 47(7) of the Act

Governance Rules
adopted in accordance
with section 60 of the Act

Yes/no

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
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Date of operation Reported

date (where
applicable)
15/08/2022,
21/11/2022,
20/02/2023,
15/05/2023

(where applicable)

26/09/2022,
21/11/2022,
20/02/2023,
15/05/2023

15/08/2022,
21/11/2022,
20/02/2023,
15/05/2023

15/08/2022,
21/11/2022,
20/02/2023,
15/05/2023

17/10/2022

15/02/2021

26/10/2022

17/08/2020

Cardinia Shire Council

Annual Report 2022-23

59



ORDINARY
COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023 ATTA
CHMENT 6.2.1.1

Certification of governance and management

Certification of governance and management checklist
We certify that this information presents fairly the status of Council’'s governance and management

arrangements.
Adudierd.
E 7 ¥ o
l_..‘.‘
carol Jeffs
cr Tammy Radf d
Chief Executive Officer h/:aya::lzg2; 2gr

Dated: 18 September 2023
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Statutory information

Information available for the public

In accordance with section 57 and 58 of the Local
Government Act 2020, documents and information
available to the public will be managed as set out in
Council’s Public Transparency Policy.

The policy supports Council in its ongoing drive for
good governance and the importance of open and
accountable conduct, and how Council information is
to be made publicly available. The policy gives effect to
the Public Transparency Principles outlined in the Local
Government Act.

A list of documents available for inspection under the
various Acts that Council is subject to can be found in
Council’s Part Il Statement in accordance with section 7
of the Freedom of Information Act 1982.

Contracts

During the 2022-23 financial year, no contracts were
entered into over the tender threshold without giving
public notice of the contract and inviting tenders.

Council adopted its Procurement Policy on 18 October
2021; the Policy is consistent with section 108 of the
Local Government Act 2020 (the Act).

This Policy has a contract value of $300,000 (incl. GST)
for Invitation to Tender or Expression of Interest.

Below is a list of contracts entered into with a value above
Council’s Procurement Policy:

* Cardinia Shire library service
¢ Engineering professional services
¢ Cardinia Shire arboricultural works contractors panel

¢ Annual supply and install concrete footpath and
associated works - new and maintenance

¢ Purchase of 2 x new motor graders with rollers
* Pound services
* Mercury vapour street lighting replacement

¢ Electronic access control system and master key
system for Council properties

¢ Reconstruction of Nar Nar Goon Oval

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023

Section 5 Governance and Management

¢ Reconstruction of Bunyip Soccer Fields

¢ Construction works at Timbertop and Pink Hill
Boulevards intersection, Officer

* Cockatoo Tennis Court reconstruction

¢ Construction of Christians Ave and Andrew Ct, Emerald
* Immunisation services

* Pavement renewal works 2022-23

* 2 X new prime movers

¢ Construction of Brunt Road Early Learning Centre
 Construction of Russell-Blackwood Catchment, Gembrook

¢ First-Grenville package phase 1 road reconstruction
works, Cockatoo

* Naughton St and Carawa St reconstruction works, Cockatoo

* Station Road, Garden St, Glen Road and Baker St
reconstruction works, Cockatoo

¢ Construction of Caroline Ave, Boronia Cres & Rouen
Road, Cockatoo

* Construction of Garfield Netball Pavilion
¢ Construction of Pakenham Regional Tennis Centre

¢ Principal consultant for the design of Thewlis Road
Child & Family Centre

¢ PB Ronald Reserve & Alma Treloar Reserve Public Toilets
¢ Construction of Alma Treloar Amphitheatre and Stage
¢ Construction of Brunt Road and Pioneer Way, Officer

¢ Bald Hill Road Blackspot - McDonalds Drain to Five
Mile Road, Pakenham

¢ Microsoft Licensing
¢ Boomi Pro Plus Edition Bundle

¢ End user computer equipment lease.

One contract was entered into where Council did not invite
a tender or seek an expression of interest. This contract
was for emergency works following a land slip and was:

* Salisbury Road landslip rectification works.
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Best Value Report 2022-23

Cardinia Shire Council continues to embrace Best Value
principles. Council primarily applies these through its
business and service-delivery planning processes by
monitoring the change in demand for services and by
identifying the appropriate resources to meet that demand
in a fair manner for all the community. In addition, we
continue to work with existing partnerships while exploring
new opportunities to deliver services.

Access and Inclusion Policy and Action Plan

Council, in conjunction with the Cardinia Access and
Inclusion Advisory Committee, continued to monitor and
implement the Disability, Access and Inclusion Action

Plan. Council’s Access and Inclusion Disability Strategy
and Action Plan 2021-2026 is underway, such as the
development and implementation of the new Disability
Action Plan. Extensive community engagement was
undertaken to develop this new plan, which sets out what
Council will do to make our workplaces, services, programs
and community more accessible to people with disability.

Domestic Animal Management Plan

In accordance with the Domestic Animals Act 1994,
Council is required to prepare a Domestic Animal
Management Plan at 4-year intervals.

The Domestic Animal Management Plan 2022-25 was
developed in consultation with local veterinary clinics,
domestic animal business permit holders, peak industry
bodies and animal interest groups. This revised plan was
adopted by Council on 20 June 2022.

Food Act Ministerial Directions

In accordance with Section 7E of the Food Act 1984,
Council is required to publish a summary of any Ministerial
directions received during the financial year. No such
Ministerial directions were received by Council during the
2022-23 financial year.

Cardinia Shire Council
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Freedom of Information (FOI) Report

In accordance with the Freedom of Information Act 1982
reporting requirements, the following information is
supplied for the period 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023:

a. 37 FOI requests were made to Cardinia Shire Council.

b. Manager Governance, Doug Evans, is the designated
officer with authority to make a decision in relation to
a request.

c. no applications for review were made to the Freedom
of Information Commissioner.

d. no application was made to the Victorian Civil and
Administrative Tribunal (VCAT) during the above period.

e. No notices were served on the agency under Section
12 (1).

f.  nodisciplinary action was taken out against any
officer in respect of the administration of the Act.

g. $1,101.60 charges were levied on the applicants.

Public Interest Disclosure Act

The Public Interest Disclosure Act 2012 aims to ensure
openness and accountability in government by encouraging
people to disclose improper conduct within the public sector
and provide protection for people who make disclosures.
Procedures on how to make a disclosure are publicly
available on Council’s website. During 2022-23, no
disclosures were notified to Council officers appointed to
receive disclosures or to the Independent Broad-based
Anti-corruption Commission (IBAC).

Road Management Act Ministerial Direction

In accordance with Section 22 of the Road Management
Act 2004, Council is required to publish a copy, or a
summary, of any Ministerial directions received during the
financial year. No such Ministerial directions were received
by Council during the 2022-23 financial year.
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National Competition Policy Compliance * define the standards to which persons engaged in
building work should adhere, which aims to minimise
the impact of building activities in respect of hazards to
health and safety, the presence and disposal of builders’
refuse, rubbish and soil, stormwater, and other pollution.

¢ provide for the consistent application and enforcement
of this Local Law.

Cardinia Shire Council has complied with the requirements
of the National Competition Policy for the period 1 July
2022 to 30 June 2023.

Current Local Laws

As at 30 June 2023, Council had 2 Local Laws in operation. Local Law No 20 Open Air Fires Local Law

Local Law No 17 Environment, amenity and asset

The main objectives of this Local Law are to:
protection local law

* provide for the peace order and good governance of

The purpose and general purport of this Local Law is to: Cardinia Shire Council:

« provide for the peace, order and good governance of * promote a physical and social environment free
Cardinia Shire Council. from hazards to health, in which the residents of the

* promote a physical and social environment in the municipal district can enjoy a quality of life that meets
municipal district free from hazards to health and the general expectations of the community;
safety, and to prevent and suppress nuisances that may  * protect the amenity of the municipal district;
adversely affect persons. e prevent and suppress nuisances connected with open-

 prohibit, regulate, and control activities that may be air fires and smoke in the environment, which may
dangerous or unsafe or detrimental to the quality of life, adversely affect the enjoyment of life or the health,
the environment, and the amenity of the municipality. safety and welfare of persons;

« prohibit, regulate, and control access to, and behaviour * prohibit, regulate and control open-air fires (and related
in, municipal places, buildings, recreation centres and behaviours) which may be dangerous or unsafe or
reserves, and to protect public assets vested in Council. detrimental to the quality of life and the environment; and

* provide for the consistent application and enforcement
of this Local Law.

Cardinia Shire Council
Annual Report 2022-23

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023 63



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023 ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

Deve|opment contribution Section 5 Governance and Management

plans (DCPs)

Urban development generates demand for a range of
costly infrastructure. Development contributions and
associated requirements enable Council to recover a
significant portion of those costs from the beneficiaries
of growth.

Development contributions are divided into 4 groups:
1. major roads and traffic control infrastructure

2. other development infrastructure (preschools,
playgrounds and basic sporting open space)

3. community infrastructure (community centres, libraries
and indoor sporting facilities)

4. land required to facilitate the delivery of the above.

Although the collected contributions do not meet the full
cost of the growth area infrastructure, the contributions
are vital to Cardinia Shire Council’s capacity to deliver
critical infrastructure to service its new communities as
development surges.

Table 8. Total DCP levies received in 2022-23 financial year

-
DCP name Levies received in
(Year approved) 2022-23 FY ($)
Pakenham DCP (1997) $2,745,864
Cardinia Road DCP (2008) $5,705,728 .«

Officer DCP (2011) $10,183,294
Total $18,634,886
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DCP land, works, services or facilities accepted as works-in-kind in 2022-23 financial year

Table 9.
DCP reference | Project description and item purpose Developed by Project value
(approx. $)

Officer DCP (2011)

DI_RO_09%9a Construction of McMullen Road Upgrade to BJR McMullen Pty Ltd $284,557
Connector Street - Constrained Type 1 (Section 4a)

DI_RO_09b Construction of McMullen Road Upgrade to an BJR McMullen Pty Ltd $2,443,143
Access Street - Level 1 Rural Style Road (Section 6a)

DI_RO_LA35b Purchase of Land for Rix Road Upgrade to a Rix Road Development Pty Ltd $2,257,340
Connector Street Boulevard Standard (Section 3)

DI_RO_23 Construction of Station Street Safety Upgrade of at- Galileo Mulcahy Road Nominee Pty  $1,528,789
grade Rail Crossing Limited

DI_CF_LAO6 Purchase of Land for the Central Integrated Development Victoria $2,510,011

Community Infrastructure Site. - to accommodate a
Youth Facility, Library and Aquatic Centre.

DI_TM_21 Construction of Signalised Intersections at Satterley Property Group Pty Ltd $5,779,963
North-South Arterial (Officer South Road)/Princes
Freeway (interchange).

DI_RO_27 Construction of Officer South Road upgrade to an Satterley Property Group Pty Ltd $1,044,300
Arterial Road: Future VicRoads Declared Road (4
lanes) (Section 1a).

DI_TN_10 Construction of trail network adjacent to the Satterley Property Group Pty Ltd $247,417
Princes Freeway from Gum Scrub Creek to the
Freeway Service Centre (no access to the Freeway
Service Centre).

DI_RO_LA38 Purchase of land for Stephens Road / Princes Satterley Property Group Pty Ltd $515,000
Freeway Overpass.

DI_RO_LA37 Purchase of land for Stephens Road upgradetoa  Satterley Property Group Pty Ltd $115,000
Connector Street Boulevard standard (Section 3).

DI_RO_LA34 Purchase of land for East-West Road C to a Access  Winland Holdings Pty Ltd $657,213
Street - Level 2 standard (Section 5).

DI_RO_14 Construction of East-West Road C to a Access Winland Holdings Pty Ltd $615,028
Street - Level 2 (Section 5).

DI_0S_06¢ Construction of Local Park Improvements (Stage 3) BJR McMullen Pty Ltd $63,099

DI_RO_16a Construction of Rix Road upgrade to a Connector ~ ARECON Management Pty Ltd $50,960
Street Boulevard standard (Section 3).

DI_RO_LA31b Purchase of land for Brunt Road upgrade to a Epic Group Investments Pty Ltd $310,799
Connector Street Boulevard standard (Section 3).

DI_RO_LA32 Purchase of land for Grade Separated Rail Epic Group Investments Pty Ltd $160,998
Crossing at Brunt Road.

DI_TM_LA31 Purchase of land for Signalised Intersection at Smorgon Property Pty Ltd $74,340

North-South Arterial/Rix Road/Officer South Road.

Sub Total $18,657,958
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Table 10. Land, works, services or facilities delivered in 2022-23 financial year from DCP levies collected

Project ID Project description DCP fund Works-in-kind | Council’s Other Total LTD % of item
expended ($) |accepted ($) |contributions |contributions |project delivered
($) (Grants) ($) expenditure ($)

Cardinia Road DCP (2008)

DI-0S-12 Comely Banks (Henry Rd West)  $675 $80,000 $14,827,355 100%
Recreation Reserve
DI_RO_15 Signalised intersection - Princes ~ $630 $43,050 100%
(design) Highway and North South
Collector Road-Arena Pde Design
DI_RO_15 Signalised intersection - Princes ~ $6,507 $6,507 10%

(construction) Highway and North South
Collector Road-Arena Pde
Construction

DI_LA_19 Land Acquisition - Library Facility - $1,164,000 $1,164,000 100%
Officer Town Centre

Sub-Total $1,171,813 - - $80,000 $16,040,912

Officer DCP (2011)

DI_CF_02 Construction of Integrated $1,479,975 $792,000 $5,641,307 95%
Childrens Facility -Timbertop

DI_CF_04 Brunt Road Integrated Childrens ~ $456,663 $2,945,093 $3,509,652 55%
Facility - Officer precinct

DI_CF_05 Integrated Childrens Facility - $128,677 $68,549 $6,548,961 100%
Officer Rix Road DCP

DI_TN_02 South side of the Princes Hwy $308,394 $457,423 100%

(part) (3m wide shared path) between
Denton Dr and service road

DI_TM_05 Princes Hwy intersections Princes $76,097 $152,703 100%

(design) Hwy/Tivendale Road/Station
St-Design

DI_TM_05 Princes Hwy intersections Princes $790,719 $2,083,442 25%

(construct) Hwy/Tivendale Road/Station St-
Construction

DI_TM_01 Princes Hwy intersections Old $1,586 $78,970 100%
(design) Princes Highway and O’Neill Road-

Design
DI_TM_01 Princes Hwy intersections Old $18,050 $4,325,660 100%

(construct) Princes Highway and O’Neill
Road-Construction

DI_TM_04 Princes Hwy intersections Princes $490,797 $532,966 100%
(design) Hwy Bayview Road/North South

Arterial-Design
DI_TM_04 Princes Hwy intersections Princes $3,732,992 $1,171,787 $4,904,779 50%

(construct) Hwy Bayview Road/North South
Arterial-Construction

DI_TM_02 Princes Hwy intersections Princes $17,005 $66,634 100%
(design) Hwy/Whiteside Road and Brunt

Road-Design
DI_TM_02 Princes Hwy intersections Princes $174,451 $174,451 10%

(construct) Hwy/Whiteside Road and Brunt
Road-Construction

DI_TM_07 Princes Hwy intersections Princes $636 $49,878 100%
(design) Hwy/Town Centre Loop Road/

McMullen Road-Design
DI_TM_07 Princes Hwy intersections Princes $6,364 $6,364 10%

(construct) Hwy/Town Centre Loop Road/
McMullen Road-Construction
DI_RO_14 Pioneer Way Construction $325,117 $325,117 14%
DI_CF_LAO6 Purchase of Land for the $1,125,989 $1,125,989 100%
Central Integrated Community
Infrastructure Site. - to
accommodate a Youth Facility,
Library and Aquatic Centre.
Sub-Total $8,642,715 $5,468,226  $29,984,297

Unless otherwise stated, amounts in the Report of Operations DCPs have been rounded to the nearest dollar. Figures in the report may not equate exactly due to rounding.
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Planning and

accountability framework

The Local Government Act 2020 requires that councils
develop an integrated and transparent approach to

planning, organised around a 10-year community vision.

Councils must apply the strategic planning principles
listed in section 89 of the Act to develop the following
documents.

¢ Community Vision (10 years)

¢ Council Plan (4 years)

¢ Financial Plan (10 years)

* Asset Plan (10 years)

* Revenue and Rating Plan (4 years)

Section 6 Our performance

When applying the strategic planning principles, councils
should also consider the other principles within the Act.
For example, strategic planning documents are developed
through community engagement and with regard to
financial management, public transparency and service
delivery.

The following diagram shows the relationships between
the key planning and reporting documents that make
up the planning and accountability framework for local
government.

Time horizon Planning Reporting

Community Vision
* Needs

Long term
(10 years)

Medium term
(4 years)

Short term
(1 year)

Cardinia Shire Council

Annual Report 2022-23

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023

Financial Plan

* Assumptions

* Resources
 Financial Statements

Asset Plan
¢ Maintenance
* Renewal

Budget Quarterly Budget Report
* Services ¢ Financial statements

¢ Infrastructure

* |nitiatives

* Rates

¢ Financial statements

Annual Report

¢ Report of operations

¢ Performance statements
* Financial statements
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Our Council Plan

Cardinia Shire Council’s performance for the past year
has been reported against the strategic objectives of our
Council Plan. This annual report provides the overall view
of Council’s activities for the 2022-23 financial year.

Our quarterly performance reports provide detailed progress
on actions undertaken to deliver the Council Plan, major
projects, improvement activities and key service provision
and growth indicators. These reports can be accessed via
Council’s website - www.cardinia.vic.gov.au.

Our quarterly Connect magazine continues to provide all
residents with updates on Council’s activities in a narrative
style, complementing the data provided in the quarterly
performance reports. Examples of articles published in
Connect magazine this year have included; updates on
major works, announcements relating grant programs, and
sharing information on upcoming projects.

@ Strong communities

ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

Section 6 Our performance

Council Plan key objectives

In the following pages, our performance is reported
against the 5 key strategic objectives of the Council Plan.
Performance is measured as follows:

* results achieved in relation to the strategic indicators in
the Council Plan.

* progress in relation to the initiatives identified in the
budget and Council Plan.

¢ services funded in the budget and the persons or
sections of the community provided with those services.

* results against the prescribed service performance
indicators and measures.

We empower our communities to be healthy, connected and resilient. We work together to support everyone to be healthy,
active and connected. Individuals feel included, safe and are valued for who they are. We have zero tolerance for all forms of
discrimination. Our community services and facilities meet the diverse needs of our communities.

S 100 % |9

Progress of actions in the
Liveability Plan

Cardinia Shire

"" . 81. 00 %@

&=70.6 Y @
2 7 O Y
e

Number of health and social

services attracted into
Percentage of residents who Cardinia Shire through the
report they feel safe living in Services for Success

framework

i@b Liveable places

We support the creation of liveable spaces and places. Cardinia Shire is a great place to live, work and play. How we plan and
grow creates places that enhance our community’s health and wellbeing and protects what we love.

@ <7836

A 100 “

Number of sealed road
requests per 100km of sealed

local roads unsealed roads

62 <2
Community Satisfaction index
score for the performance of

80 @:z60

=

Community Satisfaction index
score for the performance of
recreational facilities

.

859km ez

Total lineal kilometres of
pathways within the shire

Number of social and

committed to

129 22
aﬂord;able housing properties

@z
aam 2

Community Satisfaction index
score for the performance of
art centres and libraries
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Section 6 Our performance

L,;ﬁ Thriving environments

We value our natural assets and support our biodiversity to thrive. We place a high value on our natural assets and
biodiversity. We take action to help our natural assets and biodiversity thrive and build their resilience to climate change
and natural hazards. We enhance green spaces and habitat links, support our communities to live sustainably, and
champion sustainable development and waste management practices.

ﬂ 6.55K @23.66K

Ega 199

Number of Council buildings
operating on renewable plantings on Council owned
or managed land

@:0

W 48.22% Ghas 186 (@2

Number of environmental
education and capacity
building initiatives delivered
and/or supported by Council

Percentage of kerbside
waste diverted from landfill

ener

Prosperous economies

We support our productive land and employment land to grow local industries. Our rich supply of productive land, employment
land, distance to markets, and education opportunities enhance Cardinia Shire as south east Melbourne’s jobs capital. We
work closely with farmers, businesses and industry to enhance our municipality as a place to invest in the long-term, attract
new industries, innovations, skill development and local job creation.

AP 5456 o ey 714K B m

Total area (hectares) of
green wedge zoned land and
significant agricultural
special use zoned land

11.14K Gz

Gross regional product
(GRP) of Cardinia Shire

Number of local jobs
(Billion $)

Number of GST registered
businesses in Cardinia Shire

Responsible leaders

We practise responsible leadership and good governance, meeting recognised standards of excellence and ensuring
future generations benefit from our decisions. We are accountable and make informed and responsive decisions
that balance our current and future community’s needs.

eikin

Community satisfaction index
score for the performance of
community consultation and
engagement

3.85% @ <7.81% 67 @54

-0.14% @ >-0.80%

®

Adjusted underlying financial
results within appropriate risk
levels for financial
sustainability

Percentage of Council
decisions made at meetings
closed to the public at a level
lower than state average

~ =

84.0 % [@:=ox 236.83% @ 21802%

i':..i

Whole organisation Customer
Relationship Management
System (CRMS) service level
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Adequate financial liquidity
within appropriate risk levels
for financial sustainability
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Description Of municipality Section 7 Performance statement

Cardinia Shire is one of the fastest growing local
government areas in Victoria with an average of three
families moving into the area every day. As of 2023,
Cardinia Shire’s estimated population is 129,896 and is
expected to increase by approximately 42,361 over the
next 10 years.

Located 55 kilometres south-east of Melbourne’s central
business district, Cardinia Shire is one of 10 ‘interface
councils’ around the perimeter of metropolitan Melbourne,
where urban and rural areas meet. The Victorian
Government has nominated the Casey-Cardinia Region
as one of five regions around the fringe of metropolitan
Melbourne where new housing and population growth is
to be concentrated. The main areas of growth in Cardinia
Shire are Beaconsfield, Officer and Pakenham. Outside
this growth area, Cardinia Shire’s large rural population
resides in 27 townships.

Cardinia Shire covers an area of 1,280km?2 and has a rich
diversity of both natural and cultural sites, from the waters
of Western Port Bay to the foothills of the Dandenong
Ranges, comprising places of local and state significance.
These heritage places reflect the different periods and
people who have shaped the shire’s landscape, from
Aboriginal Australians, the first people to use the rugged
landscape, to the logging and gold mining of the foothills,
the draining of the former Koo Wee Rup Swamp, and
pastoral settlement. The landscape is again under a
period of change as new development and new people
move into the area every week.

Cardinia Shire Council
Annual Report 2022-23

87

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023 95



ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023

[uone|ndod jedioluniy
/ Siueli3 Jualnoay]

uonelndod jedjoiunw Jo sjues3
66'G8T$ 8G'8/T$ GO'GGT$ TGOVT$  pesy Jad spuels juaiinosy WBLIN0Y

[uone|ndod |edioluniy
/ ©NUBA8J 92IN0S-UMQ]

uoneindod jedioiunw
Jo peay anuanal
1/8'0¥0°'T$ 67'966$ 98'056¢$ 8C°€L6$ 49d 8nuaAal 82IN0S-UMO 904N0S-UMO

[speou |ed0] Jo sanBwo|
/ uone|ndod |edioiuniy]

peoJ Jo y1sus|
6€'GL el 8v'CL £9°0L Jad Aysusp uoneindod

[uone|ndod jedioluniy
/ 8InjonJiseljul Jo anjepl
"ainseaw S|y} pajoedw aney
€2/2Z0g Ul ainjoniiseljul pue sguip(ing ul uonelndod jedioiunw
Alrewiid usyeuspun suonenjeral 1osse JofeN 99 VEY'TTS 87°.86'6$ 8T°€GT'6$ ¥9°126'8%  Jo peay Jad ainjoniiseljul

[uone|ndod jedioluniy
/ sosuadxa |e10]]

uoneindod jedioiunw
Sr'veT'TS €9'Cre'T$ L€99T'T$ 00V.LT'TS 40 peay Jad sasuadxq uonejndod

£70Z aunf Q€ papua Jeak ayl o4
sl101edipul Alloeded ajgeuleisng

96

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023



ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023

'91ISgaM S1I U0 SII1SI1eIS JO nealng ueljesisny ayl Aq swi-01-awil Wod) payslignd sealy 104 SaXapu| OlWOU023-0100S ayl suesw ,y4|3S, e
"v413S 40 (TO0'SG 0'EE0T JoquinN angojele)) agejueApesiq
OlWOU0D3-0100S dAIIR|8Y JO Xapu| 8y} 01 uiplodoe paledo| SI Aljediolunw 8yl Yodlym ul Baje ayi o ‘4eaA |eloueul) JueAs|al ayy 1o) QT 01
T 10 9]109p ke se passaldxa ‘©3ejueApesip d1LOU0I9-0100S dAINR|a4 9Y) Sueaw ‘Alljedidlunw e 03 uolelal Ul ‘,83ejuRApPESIP JILUIOU0JS-0100S SANR|D), e
(swuelg
1UBWUWIBA0Z 3UIpNn|oul) [IDUNOD JO |0J1UOD BYL JopuN 10U S| 1BYl 8nUdAaJ Ul JaYlo anuaAal gulfyapun paisn(pe sueaw ,oNnusAal 80JN0S-UMO, e
*91ISgOM S) U0 SO1ISIILIS JO nealng ueljesisny ayl Aq paysiignd eiep uo paseq uoiie|ndod juapisal ayy sueaw ,uonendod jedioiunw, e
‘700Z 10V Wawagdeuel) peoy ayl Jepun Alioyine peoJ a1qisuodsal a8yl SI |IDUN0D 8y YOIYM IO} peOJ pajeasun J0 pajeas e sueaw ,peol [e20], e
‘pue| 3uipnjoxa awdinba pue jue(d ‘Auadoid 1Us1INd-UOU SUBBW ,8JN1ONASEIUl, e
'(q) pue (e) sydeigeied ul 01 paliajol SOY) UBYL JOY10 S824N0S WOJ) ainyipuadxe |elided puny 01 SUOINQLIIUOD "0
pue {suonngIuo9 1osse Alelduow-uou  °q
pue ‘ainipuadxs |euded puny 01 pasn sjueid Juaiindal-uou ‘e
:ueyl Jaylo awooul |B10) SueaWw ,anusnal ulAlJopun paisnipe, e
001X
[1eaf jeloueul) ayl 4o) Jeis
jusuew.ad Jo Jequinu
o8elony / SuoieuIw.Id)]
‘uonRuUdBI pue suojeusisaJ jels
pue uonoeine yum diay o1 uonisodoud anjea usuew.Jad Jo JaquinN]
oafojdwa ue Zuidojansp pue ue|d 9210)4J0M
e pajuswaldwi aA_Y S “Aisnpul Japeoiq Jaaoudny JaAouIN}
9] SS0JOke U33Ss 8Q ukd JsAouUIN] Ul 8sealdul uy %V76'9T %Co6'v7T %BE'ET %SGLCT 4eils Jjo mwmucwo\_wl 9210J0M
[e1109p Aq

a3ejueApes|p dILWou0dd
-0100S 9Ale|a) JO Xapu|]
‘19AS] 9T 0C @Y} 18 paulewal sey 2100s Y4|3S

Ino ‘e8eueApesip 0lWLOU099-0100S SAIR[S) 10} agejueapesip
Funjuel 8Y1 UMOP paAoW sey eluipie) ysnoyly 00°2 00'8 00'8 00’8 0JWOU003-0100S dA118jaY ageluenpesiq
uopieleA [eusie|y €20C cecoe Tcoc 0coc Joredipu|

97

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023



ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023

00TX [suonnossoid
1uswageuew
|ewiue Jo Jaquinu
|e10] / suonnoasoud
1uswagdeuew [ewiue
1N4SS999NS JO JaquinN]

suofnoasold
WwawaSeuew jewiuy Juswageuew
%00T %00T %00T %00T fyayes pue yyesH jewuy
[uone|ndod jedioluniy
/ sell|oey onenbe
“JUSWUOIIAUD 0} SYSIA JO Jaquinp]
6T-AIAOD € 0} dnp TZ0T 1890300 - AInf
Ayoeded paonpal A1aA e ul uiesado 40 paso|d sa13j10e)
aJoMm sallljioe) onenbe seluipie) "gT-pIno) aid onenbe Jo uoneslinn
ueyy Je1ealg ale selel UoNRYSIA ‘€Z-220¢ Ul 0g9's 6C°t or'c 8LV uones|nn | sanijioe) dnenby

£Z0Z aunf Og papus Jeak ayl 404

SJ101e01pul 9ouewload 90IAI8S

98

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023



ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023

79

[Ayunwwod

Ay} JO 1saI83U|

Uy} Ul suoisioap gunjew
Ul 119UNo) Jo douewlouad
dU} UNM QOT 40 In0 Junel
uonoejsnes Alunwwo)]

SuUoISIo9p
[10UN0Y YuM UOEJS)IES
g9 o 15 uonoejsnes

9J0UBUIBA0H

%00T

%00T %00T %007

00TX [sesiwaid

pooj B IN0Qe SUOoledlII0u
2w o091n0 doueldwoo-uou
Jolew pue suoneoou
3WO093N0 doueldwod
-UoU |BOIIID JO JBQWINN

/ dn pamoj|o} sesiwa.d
pooj B IN0Qe SUOlIedlIIou
2Wo0921n0 doueldwoo-uou
Jolew pue suofeoslnou
2Wo931no doueldwod
-uou [ea11Jo Jo JaquinN]

suonesynou
awoo3no aaueljdwod
-uou Jofew pue [€21111D
fyayes pue yyesH

Kvjes pood

99

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023



ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023

00TX [@91n8S

HOW 8y} ul pajjoius
ua1p|Iyod |euisoqy

10 JaquinN / (1eak e ul)
90UO0 1Se9| 1k 82IAIBS HON
8yl pusne oym uaip|iyod

‘€202 Ul 841ys 8y} ssoloe |euiduoqy Jo JaquinN]
sol|lwey ||e 1o} Ssyuswiulodde HON o|gejieae
ul asealoul ue ul unnsal ‘ojwapued ayy 0} uaipjIyo
uol1e[aJ Ul SBIIAISS Palal|e punoJe suondalip JeuigLoqy Aq 82iA19s (HOW)
21e1S pue sagenoys 9910I0M QIAQD W0y HOW @y3 ul uonedioinied ullesH piud
[I°M PaISA0J3J Sey 82IASS HOIA elulpie) syl %EV'GL %C9°L9 %9C°EL %8618 uonediorued pue jeussie|y

00TX [901A18S

HOIN 8yl ul pajjoius
uaip|iyd Jo JaquinN

/ (1eah e ul) 9ou0 1se9|

18 99IAI8S HOIN 9y} puane
OYM UaJIp|Iyd Jo Jaquinn]

80IMIBS (HOW)

HOW 8y3 ul uonedioiied UyesH PIYd

%L6TL %TY" L9 %EL"89 %089/ uopedioiued pue |eusale|y
00TX

[s1eak [eloueul) € 1se| BYL
ul uone|ndod jedioiunw
a8y} Jo wns ay] / sieak
|eloueuly € 1se| syl ul
SJamo.i0q Aleiqi| 8ARDE JOo
Jaquinu ayy Jo wns ay|]

Ayjedioiunw ay
Ul SI9M0.I0Q Aieiqil| 9A1IdY
%96°L %8V L %,9'8 %vT 0T uonedioiyed salielqn

100

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023



ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023

00TX [Sulq apisady
woJ} pa1oa||0d soluegio
U293 pue sa|qe|okoal
‘e3eques Jo wBeMm / suiq
apISqJoy WOl Pa1da||0d
sSolueglo usalgd pue
s9|qel0koai Jo WSiom]

[14PUE] WOIJ POLIBAID
21SEM U0J108]|00 BpISqiay

%CC 8y %8081 %L9°8Y %SG eV UOISIBAIp 8)SBM | UOIO9]|00 81seMm
00TX
[suoneoldde Suiuueid 01
uone|al ul suoisiosp [VYOA
10 Jaquinp / uoneoldde
Suiuued e 0} uoneas ul
uoISIo9p S,|1oUN0Y dpise
18S 10U pIp 1ey) suolisioap
LYOA 0 JaquinN]
1VOA 18 piaydn suolsioap
apise 18s Zuiuuerd j1ounon Suiuued
2le OM] ‘| YOA 0} 03 SUOISIOdP IN0J U} JO INQ %09 %LS %01 %0 Buijew uoisiosq Koinmers
[speo. [ed0|
pa|eas Jo uoiIpuod
a3 uo pawJopad
sey |1ouno) moy
UM 00T 40 1o Sunes
uonoejsies Alunwwo)]
Speo. [eoo]
pajess yum uoioejsnes
19 9 9% [4°] uonoejspes Speoy

101

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023



ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023

*91ISgoM S1I U0 SO1ISIILIS JO nealng ueljesisny ayl Aq paysiignd eiep uo paseq uoiejndod juapisal ayy sueaw ,uonendod jedioiunwi,,

age |00yods |1un yuiq woij Aujediolunw

U1 UIYyM uaJp|Iyd Jo Juswdolansp pue yiesy ayl uoddns 01 |10Unod e Aq papiroid a21AI8S Yy eaH plIy) pue |eulaleln ayl suesw  HIOIA,,

‘uayel S| uonoe |eipawal ou i 0s op Aew

1NQg yyeay o1gnd 011884yl SNOLIBS 91eIpaWw Wl Uk 9s0d 10U S0P eyl ADUSIOIBP B JO 0V 1Yl Jopun JadI}0 pasLioyine ue AQ [1ounod 01 USAIZ adIApe
10 ‘86T 10V P00 dY1 JO (1) 40 (S)NGT UOII08S Japun [10Un0d e AQ PaAI9dal UOIBIIHI0U B SUBBW ,UOIIBDIHI0U 8W091N0 ddue||dwod-uou Jofew,,
"+00Z 10V Wawageuep peoy dayi Japun Alloyine peod a|gisuodsal ayi Si [1I0UN0I Y1 YOIym 10} peOJ Pajeasun J0 pajeas e sueaw ,peod | oo|,
"PS6T 10V P00 8yl Ul Se Julueaw awes ay) sey ,sasiwalid pooy,

"y1jeay o1gnd 03 1eaiy} SnoIdS alelpawwl ue sasod 1eyy Aoualolap e Jo 10y 1.yl Japun Jad1440 pasuioyine ue Aq |Iounod 0} UBAIZ 8dIApe

10 ‘86T 10V P00 dY1 JO (1) 410 (S)NGT UOII08S Japun [19UN0I AQ POAISJa] UOIBDIHIOU B SUBSW ,UOI1BII10U SWOIINO0 dduel|dwod-uou [ o)RLID,

WV 1.yl JO DET uonoss

Japun sasjwaid pooy g SSe|d Se pale|oap uaaq aAey eyl ‘SET 10V P00 aU3 O Sujueaw ay) UlyUMm ‘sasiwald poo) suesw ,sasiwaid pooy g sse|o,,
10V 184l JO DBT uonodss

Japun sasiwaid pooy T SSe|d Se pale|osap usag aAey eyl ‘L8ET 10V P00 8U3 JO Sulueaw ay) Ulyim ‘sesiwald pooj suesw ,sasiwaid pooy T sse|o,,
10V 98U} JO 86 UONDAS Japun [19unod e Aq paiedaisd podal |enuue ue sueaw ,Jodal |enuue,

*Alelql] 8yl Wodi Yooq B pamoliog sey oym Aleiqi| e Jo Jaquisll e sueaw ,Jamoaioq Aielqi| 9ARoe,,

'000Z 10V 93e1uaH |eulglioqy ayi ul se 3ulueaw awes ayy sey ,uosiad |euidiioqy,,

‘uosJad |euidlIoqy ue s oym plIyod e suesw ,pjiyo |euidoqy,,

102

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023



ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023

%08'T6C

%8LYVLC

%16'LCC

%GT'G0C

%EB'9ET

%80'T¢cC

%TC 68T

%G8'GTC

00TX [sonijigel|
Ny / s1osse aain)]

salyjiqel| 3ua4ind 0}
paJedwod s)asse Jualing
lendes Buppiom

Aipinbr

6£°066'T$

98'976'T$

77'G68'T$

TL9e8'T$

v v8L TS

GTEIL'T$

SOvEL'TS

C6'0TL'TS

[siuawssasse
Auadoud jo JaquinN
/ se3Jeyo [edpiunpy

pue sajel |elauan]

juswissasse Auadosd
Jad ajes ageiany
|oA8] anuansy

L0'8VE'ES

v9'ore'es$

or'see'es

98'02T'c$

9,2e0'e$

T1°0L6'C$

€L'€6L'TS

18'008'C$

[syuawssasse Auadoud jo
Jaquiny / sesuadxa |e10]]

Juswssasse
Auadoud Jad sasuadx3y
|oAs] ainypuadxg

uoneleA |eusie|

Ss1seda.lo04

unsoy

£20¢Z dunf O papus Jeak sy 404
SJ0ledipul mocmctotma |eroueul

Aouarol3

J0yeaipu]

103

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023



ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023

Juswageuew

JUBWISaAUL puUB Ysed

a|qisuodsal ul08uo Jo }nsal

e Se saoue|eq Ueo| Ul 9Sealoap
pue ZuIoIAIBS |enuue By}

S109|J84 £2-2Z0T Ul 9seadap ay |

%18'¢C

%69°LC

%63 TE

%¥6'9€

%9L°CT

%V6'ST

%ST'8C

%G6'EE

00TX [anuanal
a1y / sduimo.loq
pue sueo| gulieaq 1saiaiu|]

sajeJ 0} pasedwod
s§uImo.lioq pue sueo]
sSuImolloq pue sueo

suonediiqo

*2INSeaW JueAd|al
2J0W e apInocid pue ynsal
aAIISod B MOYS pinom 3 ‘ainseaw
SIU} Ul papnjoul a1om sysodap
wJd} [19uNo || J| "suinial
asiwixew 0} spuny sy Jo Ayiofew
9y} S1SOAUI A[3UB.IND [19UNOY
yorym ul ‘skep Qg 41910 sanlnjew
UHm sysodap wial Jo anjea

Y] SepN|oxa J01edIpUl SIY} ‘Yysed
paloLIsalun 3uilendjed Uaym
*pa19|dwod ale SHIOM paleloosse
|un Aljigel| e se pajeasy ale
Spuny 9say] SYIOM paleIoosse

40 AJIBAIIBP BU1 JO SdUBAPE Ul
panIaoal syueld Jo anjea Jaysiy e
03}3Np Sl £€¢-¢C0¢ Ul 8sealoul ayL

uoneleA [euale|

%v1ce

%0561~

%SGLEG

%T1'SC

S]1Sedal04

%LLEVT-

%61°¢OT-

%0098~

%CCeC

unsay

00TX [senliqel| Juaung
/ yseo pajousaiun]

sanljqel

Ju8.1In2 03 paieduwod
yseo pajoulsalun
yseo pajoulsailun

l01e01pu|

104

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023



ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023

'cereoc

0} pajedwod sy09foid apeigdn
pue |emaual 8injonJiseljul
paye3pnq Jo AlaAllep
pasealoul pamojie £g-¢coc Ul

00TX [uoneldaidap
19ssy / asuadxa apes3dn
19SSe pue |emaual 19ssy]

uoneroaidap
0} pajedwod spes3dn
pue [emauaJ 1ossy

SUOIOISaI PINOY JO [BAOWI BYL %GE'8L %6Y7°CL %9S°LTT %19°L0C %C0'8CT %99 TL %60790T %GG'6/. | @pesddn pue [emouds 19SSy
'saoue|eq
ueo| ul suononpal guioguo
yum pajdnod suopoesuesy
Jadojonap Jo uoniugooas ul uiwin 00TX [@nuaAai 221n0s umQ
J0 }Insal e S| sal|iqel| Juaind / sanljiqel| Juaino-uoN]
-UoU Ul Uoionpal e ‘uonippe uj
*22-120Z 01 pasedwod s|ans| aiel aNnuaAaJ 99IN0S
1S9J91Ul Jaygiy 0} anp anuanal umo 01 paJedwod
1saJa3ul Jay3iy Jo 1d1edal ayy 01 saljiqel| 1ua4ind-UuoN
NP S| £¢-¢C0¢ Ul sealdsp ayL %19°9C %9V’ TE€ %G8°GE %L6°Cl %TT 9T %€0'GC %ITTE %V 6€ ssaupsaqapu|
00TX [enuanal
a1y / ssuimo.loq
pue sueo| gulieaq
1s8.J91ul Uo syuswAedal
lediounid pue 1salaiu|]
sajel 0}
1edA ¢zZ-120Z @Y1 3uunp pa|iyn} pasedwod suswAedal
SEM JUSWINSS UeO| 88Je| e sk sguimolioq pue sueoq
€C-¢C0C Ul JoMO] S! J01edlpul Siy L %90'% %SLY %C0’S %C6'C %C9'E %60°CT %EO VT %TL9 S8uUIMO.IOg pue sueo

uolnelieA [euale|

S]Sedalo4

Junsay

l01e901pU|

105

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023



ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023

007X [Aujedioiunw

oy ul saiuadoid

a|geaiel Jo anjeA panodw|
lende) / anuanal a1ey]

*ainseaw siy) payoedwl sanjen Auadoid
Alleuayew aney sasealoul 0} pajedwod sarey
uoneniea Auadoid agie %.C°0 %920 %LC°0 %.C°0 %620 %GE0 %9€°0 %GE0 HoYe sajey
00TX [enuanai duiAapun
paisnipy / anuanai a1ey]
anuanal
Suifispun paisnipe
0} paJedwod sajey
%TT'6L %.9°8L %60'8L %L0°LL %EITL %GT'CL %19V L %697 L uonesuadu0d ssjey
Aijigels
'Suoed|go Juswaaidy
asludiaiug Jo yuaw|iyns pue
Sjuawalinbai 82in0sal [euonippe
UUM aul| ul S3s09 9akojdwid
J9y31y Aq 10s0 Ajped usaq
aABY 9S8Y] "JUBJIY) 9OUB)SISSY
[eloueUlS £2-€20T 1IN dU}
40 1d1928J paoueApe BU} JO }NSal
e se Ajuewnud paAlooal alom
syuesd Sunesado Jaygiy ‘uonippe 00TX [enuanai Buikyepun
Ul "'2Z-T0c 01 paiedwod sajel paisnfpy / (Woyap) snidins
1S9J81ul JaysIy woJy Sunnsal Buikepun paisnipy]
ONUdASI 1S8J91UI POSEaIOU| SEM
1InsaJ a8y} 01 SunnNQqLIU0Y "siedk (o148p J40) snjdins
snolnaid ul ueyy Jamoj st Holap Buiflispun paisnipy
Bulkiepun paisnlpe £2-220C dul %.L9°€- %9G°G- %TL L %GE9- %YT°0- %6€°0- %08°0- %vSC- | Hnsa1 Suikpepun peisnipy

uolnelieA [euale|

S]Sedalo4

Junsay

uonysod unesado

l01e901pU|

106

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023



ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023

"ySeo PaloliIsal ueyl Jaylo0 S1UdeAINba ysed pue ysed ||e sueaw ,Yyseod pajoulsaiun,

"JeaA |ejoueuly snoinaid ay) wody ainlipuadxa SyJom |euded puny 01 pasn ag 0} YSeD Sapn|oul pue palollsal Sl Yolym

Joj 8sodind e J0J ueyl JBY10 BSN 104 d|qe|IeAR 10U dJe 1eYl ‘SYV 9yl JO Sulueaw ayl Ulylm ‘sjusjeAinba yseod pue yseo sueawl ,ysed palollsal,
‘sajpadoud |erluapisal UO PaIAd| S83JBeYD 9IIAISS puR Salel 92IAI9S ‘Sadieyd |edidlunw ‘sajel |BJausg WoJ) dNUSAS) sueaw ,Salel |elluapIsal,
“JueJg 1USJ4INJ8J-UOU B Uey] JOY10 1URIg B Sueaw ,ueig 1uaiindal,

'S93JeYD 92IAISS pue Salel 90IAISS ‘sagieyd [edidlunw ‘sajel [elousg WOl 9NUSASI SUBSW ,BNUDASI kel

*91ISqOM S1I U0 S211SNe1S JO nealng ueljesisny ayl Aq paysiignd eiep uo paseq uonendod juapisal ayl sueaw ,uonejndod jedidiunwi,,

(suesg

1UBWUIBA0Z Sulpn|oul) |IDUNOD JO |0J1UOD BY] JOPUN 10U S| 1Y) 8nUdASJ UBY] JoYlo anuaAal ulAjJapun palsnipe sueaw ,8nuaAal 824N0S-UMO,,
‘ued |eloueUl) S,[10UNOD B AQ PaJSA0D poliad ayy sunp

ulege paAlgdal 8q 01 Pa10adxa 10U S| pue Jauuew paloads e ul papuadxs aq 1l 12Y] UONIPUOD Sy} UO paulelqo uel3 e sueaw ,Juel3d 1us1inNdai-uou,
'S91}1|Igel| JUSLIND UBYl JOY10 Sanljigel| ||e sueaw ,Salil|igel| Jualnd-uou,,

"S]19SSEe 1Ua4INd UBY] JOY10 S19SSe ||e sueaw ,S19SSe 1ualind-uou,,

"'SYV 9yl Ul se gulueaw awes ayl sey ,Salljigel| Juano,

*(SYV) piepueis Sununoddy ueljellsny oyl Ul se Sujueaw awes ay) sey ,S19Sse 1ualing,

‘Aujiqeded jeuidlo sy 0y

19sSe a1 Jo Alljigeded 991A18s 8yl suinlal 1eyl 19sse 3uiisixa ue guioe|dal uo Jo 18sse ullsixa ue uo aJnypuadxs sueaw ,osuadxa |[emaual 19sse,
‘aJn)ipuadxa |B10] SSO| onusAal gulAyapun paisnipe sueaw ,(101)ap 40) snidins SuiAjiapun paisnipe,

(q) pue (e) sydeigeled ul 01 paiiajol 9SOY) UBY] JOYl0 S824N0S WO} ainlipuadxe [eyded puny 01 SUOIINQLIIUOD O

pue {suonnguiuod 19sse Alelouow-uou  “q

pue ‘ainypuadxa |e1des puny 01 pasn SlueI3 JUdLINd3J-UOU "B

:uey} JaY1o awooul [e10) sueaw ,anuanal Sulkspun paisnipe,

107

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023 ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

For the year ended 30 June 2023.

Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report. The
performance statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity, services
performance and financial performance indicators and measures, together with a description of the
municipal district and an explanation of material variations in the results. This statement has been
prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 and Local Government
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

Where applicable, the results in the performance statement have been prepared on accounting
bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other results are based on
information drawn from Council’s information systems or from third parties.

The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the prescribed
financial performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by Council’s financial plan. The
Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020 requires explanation of any material
variations in the results contained in the performance statement. Council has adopted materiality
thresholds relevant to each indicator and measure and explanations have not been provided for
variations below the materiality thresholds unless the variance is considered to be material because
of its nature.

The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by Council in its
financial plan on 26 June 2023. The financial plan includes estimates based on key assumptions
about the future that were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability
over the long term. Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained in the Annual
Financial Report. The financial plan can be obtained by contacting Council on 1300 787 624 or
mail@cardinia.vic.gov.au
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Certification of the Performance Statement

In my opinign, the accompanying perfermance statement has been prepared in accordance with the
Local Government Act 2020 and the Local Govermment (Plaaning and Reporting) Regulations 3020,

5 e,

Scolt Moore
Chief Finance Officar
Dated: 18 September 2023

In gur opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the Cardinia Shire Council for the year
ended 30 June 2023 presents fairy the results of Coundils performancs in accordance with the
Local Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Pladaning and Reparting)] Regulations 2020,

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and results in
relation 1o gervice performance, financial performance and sustainable capadity,

At the date of signing. we ane not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulan in
thi: performancs statement 1o be misleading of inacourate,

We have been authorised by the Council and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Reguwiations 2020 1o certify this perfarmance statement in its final form.

Vit

Cr Jack Kowarzik
Coundillor
Dated: 18 September 2023

Cr Stephanie Davies

Coundcillar
Dated: 18 September 2023

(=

Carol Jefls
Chief Exacutive Officar
Dated: 18 September 2023

Ordinary Council Meeting 16 October 2023 109



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING 16 OCTOBER 2023 ATTACHMENT 6.2.1.1

VAGO

Independent AUditor’s Report Viclorian Awdior-General's Ofice

To the Councillors of Cardinia Shire Council

Opinion | have audited the accompanying performance statement of Cardinia Shire
Council (the council) which comprises the:

° description of municipality for the year ended 30 June 2023

° sustainable capacity indicators for the year ended 30 June 2023

° service performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2023
° financial performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2023
° other information and

° certification of the performance statement.

In my opinion, the performance statement of Cardinia Shire Council in respect
of the year ended 30 June 2023 presents fairly, in all material respects, in
accordance with the performance reporting requirements of Part 4 of the
Local Government Act 2020 and Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2020.

Basis for Opinion | have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which
incorporates the Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements. | further
describe my responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the performance statement section
of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and |
are independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of
the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of
the performance statement in Victoria. My staff and | have also fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my opinion.

Councillors' The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
responsibilities for the  the performance statement in accordance with the performance reporting
performance requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 and the Local Government
statement (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020 and for such internal control as the

Councillors determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of a performance statement that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Lowwd 31 ¢/ 35 Celling Srenl, Malbeuers Vie 3000

2 17
3 8507 TOO0  ersguinssfoud it via. pow ol warsoudi i o ou
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Auditor’s As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion
responsibilities for the N the performance statement based on the audit. My objectives for the audit
audit of the are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the performance
performance statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to
statement fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of this performance
statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements, | exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
performance statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the council’s internal control

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
performance statement, including the disclosures, and whether
performance statement represents the underlying events and results in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

Ty

MELBOURNE Travis Derricott
22 September 2023 as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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